

Point Leo Surf Life Saving Club Inc. ABN 83 471 063 765

ANNUAL REPORT

2007 ~ 2008



2007 Point Leo Swim Classic

53 Years Service to the Community



Point Leo Surf Life Saving Club Inc.

Table of Contents

| President's Report | 4 |
|--------------------------------------|----|
| Committee Members Meeting Attendance | 5 |
| Membership Statistics | |
| Financial Reports | |
| Club Captain's Report | 12 |
| Vice Captain's Report | |
| First Aid Report | |
| Chief Instructor's Report | 15 |
| Junior Report | 16 |
| Beach Report | 19 |
| R & R Report | 20 |
| Board and Ski Report | 21 |
| Boat Section Report | 22 |
| Cadet Report | 23 |
| Clubhouse Report | 23 |
| President's Trophies | 24 |
| Senior Club Awards | 25 |
| Competition Awards | 25 |
| Point Leo SLSC Club Champions | 25 |
| Junior Club Awards | _ |
| SLSA President's Medal Award | 25 |
| Point Leo Surf Life Saving Club Inc | 26 |
| Patrol Hours 2007/2008 | 28 |
| Life Saving Awards | 29 |
| Senior State Title Results | 30 |
| Masters State Title Results | 30 |
| Junior State Title Results | 31 |
| Point Leo Swim Classic Results | 32 |
| Supporters | 32 |
| Membership List | 33 |

President's Report

After my first year as President I reflect on the Point Leo Surf Life Saving Club season of 2007/08. The strength of the club lies in its membership and the enthusiasm of the members. Whether it has been in the competitive arena, the social gatherings or the most important patrolling discipline, the members have shown wonderful support. And most importantly we have enjoyed these events in good spirit. We were blessed with a classic summer. I cannot recall too many days on the beach where jackets and beanies were required. And when we needed the surf to perform, that it did.

The season had a number of highlights. These included a wonderful Nipper program that has gone from strength to strength with support from many families. The Leo Nippers did us proud at the Lakes Entrance State Titles, bringing home the title. In the senior arena, we saw some wonderful efforts from our athletes. What was pleasing in the seniors was seeing the new faces representing Point Leo. And we should not forget our Masters who performed exceptionally well in their events.

Point Leo successfully held one of the four premier senior carnivals run by Life Saving Victoria. This event was superbly supported by a hard working band of club members. There is no doubt that when we have a task to perform we do it well. Thank you to all those members who worked to make this day the success that it was. I would also like to recognize the assistance from the Point Leo Foreshore personnel, in particular Ray and Tony, for their hard work during these busy times.

On the social side of things, I believe we have all enjoyed the club venue over the season. The informal gatherings at the bar have been well supported and our Thursday evening roast nights were a great success. A big thanks to Alf Treadwell and John Horwood (and their supporters) for their enthusiasm and hard work over the season.

The club is in a good financial position. However like any voluntary organization we continue to seek support and assistance from within the club and externally. The committee has earmarked some areas of potential improvement. These include a new kitchen area and equipment, a new patrol shelter and ongoing support for the Bronze Camp. We have been well supported by our sponsors over the year. A big thanks to those who have given so generously to the club.



We are now planning for the 2008/09 season and one important change that is being worked on is the format of the Point Leo Swim Classic. This is a special event on the Point Leo calendar and the plan is to make this event more interesting for both participants and spectators.

An important part of any club is its structure. Although Point Leo SLSC Inc operates quite well, I believe that we need a clearer outline of the clubs operational structure. A subcommittee has recently been formed that is generating a club structure that will hopefully illustrate more clearly to the

general membership how the club works in its respective operational areas. I sense that there are many members that would like to be more involved in the club's operations but may be a little unsure of how to best approach their area of interest. Our plan is to outline the structure via a hierarchical map that will guide members to those areas of interest.

The Point Leo Surf Life Saving Club over the years has had some very special people involved in its development. With regret we lost two of these special people during the year. The passing of the beautiful Jill McKellar and the sudden death of Al Buxton was very hard for many of us. We will always have a thought for these wonderful members.

Before we know it we will be back in action on the beach. There is a solid amount of planning going on behind the scenes and we trust that our planning will enable another great year for our club.

Marc Aliotti Club President

Committee Members Meeting Attendance

| Marc Aliotti | 8 | Khali Williams | 7 |
|-------------------|---|----------------------------|---|
| Andrew Gibson | 8 | Steve Roadnight | 6 |
| Kim Williams | 9 | Michelle Royal-Hebblewhite | 4 |
| Simone Williams | 5 | Julia O'Shaughnessy | 5 |
| Tom Mollenkopf | 6 | John Horwood | 8 |
| Andrew Foley | 3 | Kim Aliotti | 7 |
| Hayden Rydberg | 2 | Richard Ellis | 5 |
| Natalie Johnstone | 1 | Alf Treadwell | 7 |
| Luke Treadwell | 5 | Brooke Mollenkopf# | 3 |
| Ben Nunan# | 0 | Michael Treadwell# | 5 |
| James Keeran* | | Blane Paton# | 3 |
| Emily Cox* | | #committee appointed | |
| | | | |

^{*}resigned during the year

Several positions were not filled at the 2007 Annual General Meeting, therefore it fell to the Committee to fill the vacant positions. The Committee appointed Michael Treadwell to Radio Officer, Ben Nunan to Team Manager, Blane Paton to Vice President and Brooke Mollenkopf to Mine Editor.

Membership Statistics

| | 200 | 4/05 | 200 | 5/06 | 200 | 6/07 | 200 | 7/08 |
|---|------------|------------|------------|------------|------------|------------|------------|------------|
| Membership Category | М | F | М | F | М | F | М | F |
| Active Members (Junior & Senior) | 65 | 50 | 63 | 63 | 72 | 55 | 78 | 57 |
| Active Reserve | | 1 | | 1 | 2 | 1 | 3 | 1 |
| Cadet members Other (Life/Hon/ Assoc/Long | 40 | 43 | 34 | 29 | 48 | 47 | 41 | 51 |
| Service) | 110 | 75 | 105 | 70 | 100 | 81 | 118 | 97 |
| Junior Members | <u>164</u> | <u>144</u> | <u>123</u> | <u>144</u> | <u>111</u> | <u>138</u> | <u>168</u> | <u>174</u> |
| Sub Totals | <u>379</u> | <u>313</u> | <u>325</u> | <u>307</u> | <u>333</u> | <u>322</u> | <u>408</u> | <u>380</u> |
| Totals | 69 | 92 | 63 | 32 | 65 | 55 | 78 | 38 |

Financial Reports

POINT LEO SURF LIFE SAVING CLUB INC. ABN 83 471 063 765

SPECIAL PURPOSE FINANCIAL REPORT

YEAR ENDED 30TH APRIL, 2008

POINT LEO SURF LIFESAVING CLUB INCORPORATED BALANCE SHEET AS AT 30TH APRIL, 2008

| 2007 | <u> </u> | 2008 |
|------------------------|--|-------------------------------|
| | MEMBERS' FUNDS | |
| | Reserves | |
| \$568,149.02 | Accumulated Profits | \$628,266.63 |
| | DEDDEOGNITED DV | |
| | REPRESENTED BY: | |
| | CURRENT ASSETS | |
| | Cash at Bank | |
| 14,850.63 | - General Account | 14,846.55 |
| 42,335.02 | - ING Direct | 77,178.08 |
| 18.81 57,204.46 | - Gift Account | 9,025.84 101,050.47 |
| 400.00 | Cash on Hand | 400.00 |
| | Cash on hand - bar float | 400.00 |
| | Stock on Hand - clothing inventory | 27,594.18 |
| 744.33 | | 271.15 |
| | Receivables | 8,357.00 |
| 977.16 | Consolidated GST Accounts | 1,039.69 |
| 81,726.63 | Total Current Assets | 139,112.49 |
| | CURRENT LIABILITIES | |
| 0.00 | Creditors | 0.00 |
| 0.00 | GST Payable | 0.00 |
| 0.00 | Bond on Equipment | 0.00 |
| 0.00 | | 0.00 |
| 81,726.63 | WORKING CARITAL | 120 112 10 |
| 01,720.03 | WORKING CAPITAL | 139,112.49 |
| | PROPERTY PLANT AND EQUIPMENT | |
| 578,228.18 | Buildings at cost | 578,228.18 |
| 193,065.00 | - Acc Depreciation Buildings | 202,694.00 |
| 385,163.18 | | 375,534.18 |
| 19,962.00 | Furniture & Fittings at cost | 27,668.38 |
| 8,858.00 | - Acc Depreciation Furniture & Fittings | 11,952.00 |
| 11,104.00 | | 15,716.38 |
| 191,788.21 | Gear & Equipment at cost | 193,908.58 |
| 112,727.00 | - Acc Depreciation Gear & Equipment | 113,947.00 |
| 79,061.21 | | 79,961.58 |
| 20.044.00 | Coor & Equipment at Dancella Value | 40.054.00 |
| 32,841.00 21,747.00 | Gear & Equipment at Donor's Value - Acc Depreciation Gear & Equipment - Donors | 43,054.00 25,112.00 |
| 11,094.00 | - Acc Depreciation Geal & Equipment - Donois | <u>25,112.00</u> 17,942.00 |
| 11,034.00 | | 17,342.00 |
| 486,422.39 | | 489,154.14 |
| \$568,149.02 | NET ASSETS | \$628,266.63 |

POINT LEO SURF LIFESAVING CLUB INCORPORATED PROFIT AND LOSS STATEMENT YEAR ENDED 30TH APRIL, 2008

| 2007 | | 2008 |
|---------------------|---|---------------------|
| | INCOME | |
| | Gifts | |
| 545.45 | Sponsorships | 909.09 |
| 33,799.46 | Gifts & Donations | 54,135.24 |
| 5336.53 | Grants | 8,745.45 |
| 125.15 | Subsidies | 357.93 |
| | | |
| 750 | Facilities | 0.070.00 |
| 750 | Equipment | 3,970.00 |
| 7793.63 | Club Rooms | 7,222.73 |
| | Fund Raising | |
| 9854.55 | John Marshall Swim / Point Leo Swim Classic | 16,174.94 |
| 3070.01 | Functions | 7,608.26 |
| 5505.69 | Nippers | 4,980.14 |
| 749.99 | 50th Anniversary Book | 109.09 |
| 5617.27 | Sundry | 3,958.18 |
| | Memberships | |
| 7097.73 | Competition | 10,663.64 |
| 14609.09 | Members | 18,395.46 |
| 9,913.64 | Nippers | 18,181.83 |
| 4062.05 | Training Camps | 5,449.03 |
| 319.09 | Award | 2,140.91 |
| 1454.53 | Joining | 3,522.72 |
| 5055.11 | Bronze Camp | 7,232.74 |
| 10100 04 | Aggammadation | 4 924 52 |
| 12180.34 9095.91 | Accommodation Bar | 4,834.53 |
| | | 10,027.38 |
| 2568.77 37870.83 | Interest | 4,199.81 |
| 2565.19 | Uniforms; clothing Other | 35,340.00 620.47 |
| 0.00 | Profit (Loss) on Disposal of Assets | -798.73 |
| 0.00 | From (Loss) on Disposal of Assets | -190.13 |
| 179,940.01 | TOTAL INCOME | 227,980.84 |
| | EXPENSES | |
| 33,185.45 | Accommodation | 5,643.64 |
| 750.00 | Accountant/Audit | 780.00 |
| 1,308.70 | Administration | 1,972.02 |
| 4,364.73 | Awards | 1,722.86 |
| 189.67 | Bank Charges | 146.89 |
| 5,337.97 | Bar Purchases | 7,562.75 |
| 6,792.91 | Cleaning | 8,490.76 |
| 5,214.49 | Club Repairs & Maintenance | 6,989.08 |
| 2,043.55 | Club Supplies | 4,877.13 |
| 3,788.68 | Competition | 2,535.46 |
| 3,986.55 | Competition - Nippers | 4,552.73 |
| 441.86 | Competition - Equipment | 209.09 |
| 3,500.36 | Competition - R & R | 0.00 |
| 34,620.00 | Depreciation | 34,432.00 |
| 516.45 | Equipment Hire & Replacement | 268.59 |
| 4,260.00 | Equipment Written-Off | 6,256.00 |
| 146.64 | 50th Anniversary Book | 0.00 |
| 110.36 | First Aid | 787.37 |
| 90.91 | Functions | 1,229.36 |

| \$568,149.02 | ACCUMULATED FUNDS | \$628,266.63 |
|--------------|--|--------------|
| 574,598.50 | Accumulated Funds brought forward | 568,149.02 |
| (6,448.48) | NET PROFIT (LOSS) | 60,117.61 |
| 186,388.49 | TOTAL EXPENSES | 167,863.23 |
| 3,147.78 | Utilities | 5,189.81 |
| 33,578.73 | Uniforms | 30,874.94 |
| 7,486.82 | Training & Development (incl equipment), Bronze & Star camps | 13,129.28 |
| 1,790.31 | Sundry | 2,783.33 |
| 816.01 | Registration & Licences | 176.00 |
| 1,207.22 | Printing & Reproduction | 1,636.16 |
| 1,504.54 | Postage & Delivery | 1,985.19 |
| 4,146.57 | Patrol | 2,899.82 |
| 5,329.79 | Nippers | 2,822.96 |
| 6,507.77 | John Marshall Swim / Point Leo Swim Classic | 9230.17 |
| 9,903.67 | Insurance | 8,449.84 |
| 320.00 | Information & Technology | 230.00 |

POINT LEO SURF LIFESAVING CLUB INCORPORATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30TH APRIL 2008

| Cash flows from operating activities | Note | 2008 \$ | 2007 \$ |
|---|------|--------------------------------------|---------------------------------------|
| Receipts from Donors, members & other Income Payments to suppliers and employees Interest received Grants Received Income Taxes (Paid) Refunded | | 224,167 160,135 4,200 9,620 | 181,463 -163,130 2,569 5,337 |
| Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities | 2 | 77,851 | 26,238 |
| Cash flows from investing activities | | | |
| Proceeds from Sale of Plant & Equipment Payments for property, plant and equipment | | 1,977 -35,983 | 0 -32,054 |
| Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities | | -34,005 | -32,054 |
| Cash flows from financing activities | | | |
| Proceeds from borrowings Repayment of borrowings | | | 0 0 |
| Net cash provided by financing activities | | 0 | 0 |
| Net increase (decrease) in cash held Cash at beginning of the reporting period | | 43,846 58,004 | -5,816 63,820 |
| Cash at the end of the reporting period | 1 | 101,850 | 58,004 |

1. Reconciliation of cash

For the purposes of the statement of cash flows, cash includes cash on hand and in banks and investments in money market instruments, net of outstanding bank overdrafts. Cash at the end of the reporting period as shown in the Statement of Cash Flows is reconciled to the related items in the balance sheet as follows:

| Cash at bank - general account | 14,847 | 14,851 |
|----------------------------------|---------|--------|
| Cash at bank - donations account | 9,026 | 19 |
| Cash at bank - ING Direct | 77,178 | 42,335 |
| Cash on hand | 400 | 400 |
| Cash on hand - bar float | 400 | 400 |
| | 101.850 | 58.004 |

2. Reconciliation of Net Cash provided by Operating Activities to Operating Profit after Income Tax

| Operating profit (loss) after income tax | 60,118 | -6,448 |
|---|---------|--------|
| Depreciation | 34,432 | 34,436 |
| Provision for doubtful debts | 0 | 0 |
| Loss on equipment written-off | 6,256 | 4,260 |
| Loss (Gain) on sale of equipment | 799 | 0 |
| Increase (decrease) in income taxes payable | 0 | 0 |
| Change in assets and liabilities: | | |
| Decrease (increase) in Current Assets | -13,477 | -7,131 |
| Decrease (increase) in Donated Equipment | -10,213 | 0 |
| Increase (decrease) in Sundry Creditors | -63 | 1,121 |
| Increase (decrease) in provisions | 0 | 0 |
| Net cash provided by operating activities | 77,851 | 26,238 |

POINT LEO SURF LIFE SAVING CLUB INC. ABN 83 471 063 765 NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE ACCOUNTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30TH APRIL, 2008

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The following significant accounting policies have been adopted in the preparation of these accounts.

a) General

These financial statements are prepared for distribution to the members and for the purpose of fulfilling the requirements of the Associations Incorporation Act. The Committee has determined that the Club is not a reporting entity and therefore there is no requirement to apply the Accounting Standards in the preparation and presentation of these statements, except for those Standards specified in Schedule 1 of the Associations Incorporation (Prescribed Particulars) Regulations.

The financial statements have been prepared on the accrual basis of accounting using the historical cost convention and a going concern assumption. They do not take into account changing money values, or except where stated, current valuations of non current assets.

The accounting reports have been prepared on the basis of recognizing in dollar value only assets and liabilities generally described as cash based.

b) Principal Activity

The Club's sole activity is to provide life saving services and facilities for the community and its members. The Club did not carry out any trading activities during the financial year other than those incidental to the above activity.

c) Income Tax

No amount was required to be provided for income tax.

d) Property, Buildings and Amenities

Buildings and items of plant and equipment are recorded in the balance sheet at cost. The value of such items is brought to account as depreciation over the expected life of each asset.

POINT LEO SURF LIFE SAVING CLUB INC. ABN 83 471 063 765

STATEMENT BY COMMITTEE

AS AT 30TH APRIL, 2008

The Committee has determined that the Club is not a reporting entity as defined in Statement of Accounting Concepts 1:Definition of the Reporting Entity, and therefore there is no requirement to apply accounting concepts or standards in the preparation of these financial statements. The Committee have determined that this special purpose financial report should be prepared in accordance with those accounting standards and the basis of accounting outlined in Note 1 to the accounts.

In the opinion of the Committee:-

- 1. a) the profit and loss statement and statement of cash flows have been drawn up so as to give a true and fair view of the results of the Club for the year ended 30th April, 2008.
 - b) the balance sheet is drawn up so as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Club as at the 30th April, 2008.
 - c) at the date of this statement, there are reasonable grounds to believe that the Club will be able to pay its debts as and when they fall due.
- 2. The Club has during the financial year:
 - a) kept such accounting records as to correctly record and explain its transactions and financial position;
 - b) kept its accounting records so that true and fair accounts of the Club can be prepared from time to time; and
 - c) kept its accounting records so that the accounts of the Club can be conveniently and properly audited in accordance with the Associations Incorporation Act.
- 3. The accounts have been properly prepared by a competent person.

This statement is made in accordance with the resolution of the Committee of Management and is signed for and on behalf of the Committee by:-

Kim ulliam

Dated at Point Leo on the 6th day of July, 2008

TAYLOR PARTNERS PTY. LTD. CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS A.C.N 006 597 235

R. MALE F.C.A. G. JAMES C.A.

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF

OUR REFERENCE

POINT LEO SURF LIFE SAVING CLUB INC.

Scope

We have audited the attached special purpose financial report comprising the Balance Sheet, Profit and Loss Statement and Accompanying Notes of Point Leo Surf Life Saving Club Inc. for the year ended 30th April 2008. The members of Point Leo Surf Life Saving Club Inc. are responsible for the preparation and presentation of the financial report and the information contained therein. We have conducted an independent audit of the financial report in order to express an opinion on its preparation and presentation. No opinion is expressed as to whether the accounting policies used are appropriate to the needs of the members.

Our audit has been conducted in accordance with Australian Auditing Standards to provide reasonable assurance as to whether the financial report is free of material misstatement. Our procedures included examination, on a test basis, of evidence supporting the amounts and other disclosures in the financial report, and the evaluation of significant accounting estimates. These procedures have been undertaken to form an opinion as to whether, in all material respects, the financial report is presented fairly in accordance with Australian accounting concepts and standards so as to present a view which is consistent with our understanding of the financial position of Point Leo Surf Life Saving Club Inc. and the results of its operations.

The audit opinion expressed in this report has been formed on the above basis.

Qualifications

It is not practicable for us to audit all monies received prior to the initial entry of those transactions in the accounting records. Accordingly, the audit of those receipts was restricted to the amounts recorded in the accounting records.

Qualified Audit Opinion

In our opinion, subject to the effects on the financial report of the matters referred to in the qualifications paragraph, the financial report presents a true and fair view of Point Leo Surf Life Saving Club Inc. as at the 30th April, 2008 and the result of its operations and its cash flows for the year then ended and is in accordance with the accounting policies described in the Notes to the financial statements,

TAYLOR PARTNERS PTY LTD CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

PARTNER

Date: 08 July, 2008

Moorabbin

Club Captain's Report

As the cold weather sets in it is time again to reflect on the season that was Point Leo 2007/08. The season started off with the new permanent fixture on the Australian Boat Rowers League, the Flinders to Point Leo Boat Race, and ended with a fabulous presentation night. We improved our patrol attendance and saw the enormous growth of the Junior ranks. However, when there is a focus on one area, others tend to suffer, and this year saw the smallest State and National Teams compete for many years.

Again the patrol system was manipulated to best reflect our membership. Mentors and Captains were appointed to each team and IRB drivers were distributed across the board. Some of the teams were strong in attendance and commitment and some were not. We now need to look at why it worked and what the flaws were and again build on this for the coming season. However, we did meet our obligations in terms of numbers in attendance. Standouts include Michelle Royal Hebblewhite, Jackson Curtis and Max Wilkins (pictured right receiving Club Captain's Award). I strongly encourage



anyone that has any ideas on the patrolling system, to please contact me to discuss this further.

IRB drivers remained few and far between for some patrols, however we have taken some steps to rectify this. We had 10 new IRB crew awards this year, 3 IRB driver awards, 1 new Training officer for IRB's qualified (congratulations Ron Griffiths) and one more on the way for Mick Treadwell. With these people specifically in mind, we are planning a series of training events over the last half of the year to help boost numbers.

Each season requires a lot of time and effort to be put in behind the scenes to allow the members every opportunity to patrol, compete, enjoy the clubhouse and develop new skills. This year was no exception and thanks must be given to the committee and the tireless members who have taken the time to help out around the Club. Alf and Ann Treadwell and John Horwood for the fabulous Spit Roast Dinners, Jenny Burgess for selling piles of clothing, Richard Ellis (the 1st) and the Roadnights for their never ending supply of sausages – all of these people were always there, working hard, and didn't always receive enough thanks. Your efforts didn't go unrecognised!



Water safety was again provided with gusto for the Junior programme. The members have done a fantastic job and this acts as a great retention tool for the 14 & 15 year old members. It must be remembered that our first obligation is to patrolling and that water safety hours cannot count for competition hours.

Ben Nunan again took on the Competition Team Manager's position and shone in his ability to manage the team between events and competition arenas, and arrange teams in a second. He was heavily supported in the administration side of the role this year. Outstanding performances this year include Tom Aliotti's selection in the Victorian High Performance Squad and State Team and state titles won by Hayden Rydberg, Tom Aliotti, Kate Sunderland and the Open Women's R & R team. Other state title results are listed on page 30.

The Point Leo Senior Carnival was a new addition to the calendar this year. There was a nervous tension around the place that we may be a little 'lake" like, but "Hughey" the surf god turned the sea on to make some of the finest and most exciting racing conditions for the Senior Competition season. Boards smashed, boats went sidewards, and the waves pounded competitors into the sand with roars from the crowded beach. It was a brilliant day, and impressed quite a few people! Thanks to Rod Keppell's co-ordination the work party did an amazing job. Huge thanks to Kate and Peter Garner for co-ordinating the members, Steve Roadnight and Liz Egan and all the mums for dealing with the food, and Michelle, Richard, Andrew and Dayna for co-ordinating the

beach and carnival patrols. Whilst no one was between the flags, we had to pull together in a huge effort to make sure that the crowds and competitors stayed safe.



The Junior competition team experienced the ultimate success this year and details are related elsewhere. However, I must extend my full congratulations to Julia O'Shaughnessy and her team of merry helpers in developing the team. Whilst the Junior Holiday Programme remains aimed around water safety and surf education, the competitive spirit has continued to grow from previous seasons and is leading to the development of some excellent athletes. I hope that these junior athletes move into the senior ranks and take the club to more success.

Again the Club Championships were a roaring success despite Haydn and Jane Tierney's wedding the night before! The Men's and Women's Masters' sections were hotly contested! It was a great day by all standards, and the combined junior and senior events were again a huge success. It was a fantastic family day for Point Leo, where members from all areas of the club came together and celebrated. A huge "thank you" must go to John Horwood and Chris Munro for their organisation of the event.

Congratulations on another fantastic season!

Simone Williams Club Captain

Vice Captain's Report

2007/08 was the second season of our new Patrol system, replacing the Surf Rescue Team (SRT) structure of previous years.

Objectives of this structure were:

- Stimulate development of new and younger Patrol Captains.
- Engender more 'fun' on Patrols.
- Reduce the stress of inspections by dropping out of the Patrol competition.
- Maintain the good attendances of the SRT.
- Maintain patrol standards.



My assessment last year was that we succeeded on the first three of these objectives, but failed on the last two. This year we went one better and succeeded on the first four. Attendance on patrols was almost 'not a problem' this season. This was only in part due to a shorter season with fewer cold March and April patrols. Expect the focus for next season to be on Patrol Standards. This means following LSV procedures, being vigilant and being disciplined on the beach.

Top 20 Patrollers were:

| Michelle | Royal-Hebblewhite | 136.75 | Annalee | Gielb | 54.25 |
|-----------|-------------------|--------|-----------|-------------|-------|
| Jackson | Curtis | 115.5 | Simone | Williams | 53 |
| Scott | Roadnight | 93.5 | Philippa | Van Leeuwen | 52.5 |
| David | Gearing | 91.75 | Clare | Hudson | 51.75 |
| Andrew | Gibson | 85.25 | Tom | Aliotti | 51.75 |
| Kimberley | Lipszyc | 83.5 | Andrew | Foley | 51 |
| Max | Wilkins | 80.5 | Grace | Wilkins | 51 |
| Lucy | Dewhurst | 64.5 | Hannah | Lethlean | 50.75 |
| Richard | Ellis | 62 | Charlotte | Coleman | 49.5 |
| Zachary | Richter | 58.5 | Phillipa | Wilkins | 47.25 |
| | | | | | |

| Total hours patrolled | 4121 |
|-------------------------------|-------|
| Total Water Safety Hours | 812.5 |
| Total active members | 226 |
| Number who patrolled | 198 |
| Number who didn't do 16 hours | 28 |

A full list of patrol hours for members can be viewed on page 28.

Patrol Equipment

Gator: The new gator was a major improvement and performed well in most conditions. There were no noted problems with misuse of the gator or IRBs, which is a credit to all members.

IRBs: IRBs were very good. There were few problems with motors but hulls are deteriorating a little faster than in the past as we are reluctant to wash them as extensively as we once required due to water restrictions. Thanks go to our small but willing maintenance team for staying on top of repairs. IRB Drivers and Crew continued to be problematic. We just don't have enough. We had three drivers qualify during the season, but this will only cover our normal turnover of drivers. Qualifying more IRB drivers and crew will continue to be a priority for several seasons to come.

Patrol Trailer: Served another season. With the new gator, towing was an improvement.

Shelter: The new shelter was constructed by combining the best bits of Gunnamatta's shelter and our own. It is now in good condition and will do another couple of seasons if necessary.

Rescue boards: Kept in good repair for the third year in a row. The debate is Soft boards vs Fibreglass boards. Softies don't ding, don't get sharp edges but the ropes pull out more easily.

Cans, tubes etc: Many have deteriorated and will be replaced during the off-season.

Rescues

| | 07-08 | 06-07 | 05-06 | 04-05 | 03-04 |
|--------------------|-------|-------|-------|-------|-------|
| Rescues | 4 | 0 | 3 | 5 | 13 |
| Preventive Actions | 656 | 422 | 858 | 369 | 735 |

Andrew Gibson Vice Captain

First Aid Report

Point Leo patrollers treated 50 first aid cases in the 2007/08 season:

| Stings / Bites | 10 | Sprains / strains | 9 | Resuscitation | 0 |
|----------------|----|-------------------|---|------------------|----|
| Fractures | 1 | Other | 4 | Burns / exposure | 1 |
| Chest Pain | 1 | Spinal | 1 | Cuts / abrasions | 23 |

Analysis:

Patrol related injuries were to fingers (IRB trailer) and hands (motor/flush tank). IRB training course injuries were to foot, brow and neck. Surfboat injuries were mainly to knees and legs. All surfing and body surfing injuries were to the head, brow, nose, lips, teeth, chin. General shore break injuries were to ankles and jaw. Other injuries were sustained during activities such as beach soccer, beach cricket, and skimboarding. The majority of injuries throughout the season were cuts and abrasions (mostly from sand and shells), followed by minor stings and bites.

Many injuries at carnivals were flare ups of old chronic injuries. Carnival injuries mainly involved sprains, strains and bruises. The majority of injuries sustained at carnivals required ice packs. Sacks of crushed ice, chux type towel/wipes, and zip lock bags can be used to make the cheapest and most efficient ice packs on the day and as need arises and competitors can take them away with them.

What we did well:

- Prevented any avoidable deaths from occurring during the patrolled period 07/08
- Attended to a wide variety of major and minor injuries
- Attended to major land-based and water-related injuries swiftly and efficiently, providing treatment and referral
- Attended to minor land-based and water-related injuries, giving reassurance, providing treatment and determining any appropriate preventative actions
- Catered for major Carnivals/Events by providing a functional First Aid tent on the beach, manned by a team of patrollers and medical and paramedic professionals

What we improved upon throughout the season:

- Maintained a cleaner, more orderly First Aid room
- Wall-mounted paper towel
- Used Newsletter to inform members (Eg Hot water procedure for Bluebottle stings)
- Refined Carnival First-Aid Management Plan with medical/paramedic feedback

What we can improve upon:

- DOCUMENTATION Detailed First Aid and Incident Report Logs that match up with stats in Patrol Logs and Radio Logs at sign off
- RECORD OF SUPPLIES TO BE REPLACED (Orange Book) Entries should be made as soon as stock is used
- Appropriate CONSULTATION (Lifesaving manuals & SOP, Patrol team members, Chief Instructor, medical practitioners, LSV etc) during the assessment, treatment or management of some injuries
- REFRESH UNDERSTANDINGS Eg. COLD compresses vs ICE packs. Collision and neck pain / spinal collars

What has been organised since the end of the Season:

- Replaced broken spinal collar
- 2 x new adult adjustable spinal collars (so that we can have one in carnival tent and one in patrol shelter)
- 1 x new child adjustable spinal collar (for small nippers/children up to 8yrs)
- Replaced oxygen therapy masks & tubing (through Wilga Kottek)
 - ♦ 20 x new adult
 - ♦ 5 x new paediatric
- Organised full oxygen bottles (through Richard Ellis)
- Organised vinyl gloves (various sizes) and glove dispenser (through Wilga Kottek).
 These will replace latex gloves due to the increasing incidence of severe latex allergy in the general community.

Thank you:

Many people have worked together to facilitate the club's First Aid. They have contributed significant time and expertise, feedback and evaluation. These include, but are not limited to, the following people: Wilga Kottek, Dave Neal, Patrick Hughes, Graeme Cato, Andrew Gibson, Richard Ellis and Simone Williams. Thank you to all other club members who have assisted throughout the season in a variety of important ways.

Michelle Royal Hebblewhite First Aid Officer

Chief Instructor's Report

Club training has developed into a larger than life process that has evolved into a task that is too large for one person. This coming season more official roles are being designed to assist decrease the workload of the Chief Instructor with the hope that this position will become more attractive. The intention is to divide the roles into specialist groups, for example: training officers



dedicated to individual sections such as IRB, Senior awards, Junior awards, Bronze Medallion, etc. We made steps towards this goal last season. Thanks go to Ron Griffiths, Wilga Kottek, Simone Garner, Natalie Johnstone, Dayna Laurence, Jack Garner, Tom Ellis, Grace Wilkins, Tom Aliotti, Max Mollenkopf, Monty Frankish and Euan Ellis for their assistance with the training of our members during season 2007/2008.

Junior Report

HOLIDAY PROGRAMME:

What an amazing season we have had! This year we had a record number of 342 Nippers participate in our holiday programme. That is almost 100 more Nippers than the previous year. With so many participants, we needed to increase the number of boards. Thanks to the following families we were able to purchase 10 fibreglass and 6 foam boards on our board drive.

SLOGGETT - East Coast Pools GEARINGS - "Gearing up for Point Leo" HOPKINSON - Straillance Developments GOLVAN - www.golvanart.com.au

KOTTEK & LIPSZYC
BERGIN

MOURNEY - Countrywide Tolstrup Financial Services

WELSH - Devola's Fruit Shop Brighton

RISELEY - Lions Cleaning

MCGENNISS ABRAHAMS NOTT KARAYAN

The Holiday Programme was a raging success. The weather was generally fantastic and just when the flat conditions were getting a little less challenging, in came the chop, our famous shore break and finally some catchable waves. As always I was overwhelmed by the exuberance and sheer determination of our Nippers. They seemed to always bring their enthusiasm and positive attitude, no matter what the weather conditions. To see the development of all our nippers, but particularly some of our more reluctant nippers, was sheer joy.



Our junior surf life saving programme was about providing basic beach and surf skills and raising awareness of safety within the beach environment. This was provided in a fun way. promoting a healthy and active lifestyle. What I love about our Point Leo Nippers is that friendships are formed and developed over the years. This also really bonds the families of junior members. The atmosphere around the club exudes such warmth, fun and friendliness. The positive energy seems to be contagious.

Nowhere was the spirit of Point Leo SLSC more evident than at the Nipper Disco. Not only did we have record attendance in terms of both the nippers and their parents but anyone who witnessed the parent dance off (heaps of very frustrated discoers amongst our parents, there was limited room to boogie!!) can see that our club is a family club. We have soul! Thank you all for embracing the spirit of Point Leo SLSC.

This year the program ran with a slight change to cater for increased numbers. The main activities were surf swim, flags, sprints, boards and of course surf education. Volleyball, whilst not strictly a life saving activity, was introduced as a fourth rotation and amongst the younger age groups, it turned out to be a hit and a real team building exercise.

This programme could not operate without the involvement of the parents. Here, Point Leo SLSC has overwhelming support and I have to say the team this year was fantastic. A special thanks to Kim Williams for all the tireless work she does to get our programme up and running. I also want to thank the following parents so much for their commitment to our programme, you guys are absolute stars!

| ADMINISTRATION | Under 13 |
|---------------------------------------|--------------------------------------|
| Kate and Dave Breadmore | Boys: Age Manager Alison Keppell |
| UNIFORM SHOP | Girls: Age Manager Libby Van Leeuwen |
| Manager: Jenny Burgess | Under 14 |
| Assistants: Bernadette Elison | Boys: Age Manager Karen Hough |
| Alison Karayan | Girls: Age Manager Liz Egan |
| Monique Lopes | Competition - Brendan Riseley |
| AGE MANAGERS: | ACTIVITY LEADERS |
| Under 7: Paul Doherty | WARM UP RUN |
| Rick Howe | Brendan Riseley |
| Bruce Mourney | Bruce Mourney |
| Greg Beilby | FLAGS |
| Under 8 | Mike Starr |
| Boys: Age Manager Rowena Paton | Adrian Wale |
| Assistant Andrew Welsh | Denise Wale |
| Girls: Age Manager Damien Abrahams | SPRINTS |
| Assistants Andrew & Sandra Barnes | Andrew Shannon |
| Competition – Ken Robinson | Mick Gayfer |
| Under 9: | Michael Scales |
| Boys: Age Manager Sarah Thiele | BEACH VOLLEYBALL |
| Assistant Simon Mezger | Murray Turner |
| Competition - Paul Doherty | Nick Noall |
| Girls: Age Manager Barbara Wagstaff | SWIM |
| Assistant Liz Howe | Junior: Julian Feller |
| Competition - Liz and Rick Howe | Alison Brooks |
| Under 10 | Tony Brooks |
| Boys: Age Manager Duncan Fraser Smith | Nick Wood |
| Assistant Chris Hemphill | Dave Niall |
| Girls: Age Manager Mark Hopkinson | Senior: Rod Keppell |
| Competition - Gavin Taylor | Darren McFarlane |
| Under 11: | Jane Starr |
| Boys: Age Manager Di Sumner | BOARDS |
| Assistant Kate Farrar | Junior: Marc Alliotti |
| Girls: Age Manager Chris Bickers | Dave Neal |
| Assistant Jane Wilkins | James Cook |
| Under 12 | Senior: Jon Ford |
| Boys: Age Manager Mandy & Dale Smith | Andrew Forrest |
| Assistant Annie Cameron | Mark Dewhurst |
| Competition - David Atkins | Mark Lethlean |
| Girls: Age Manager Wendy Walker | PATIENT ASSESSMENT |
| Assistant Edwina Dixon | Wilga Kottek |
| Competition - Bo Curtis | |

SURF EDUCATION: Thank you so much to the young adults who gave up their time to deliver the Surf Ed Programme. These included Max Wilkins, Grace Wilkins, Philippa Van Leeuwen, Jack Garner, Tom Aliotti and Charlotte Coleman.

WATER SAFETY: Thank you to Blane Paton, David Gearing and to all the young members who helped out with water safety. Our Nipper programme cannot operate without the required level of water safety. It is great to see so many give up their time to help out. They are truly fantastic.

LIFESAVING STAR: Thank you to Simone Garner, Jack Garner, Tom Aliotti and Dayna Laurence for running the Lifesaving Star program for the Under 14's. They did a great job with a large number of participants.

OTHER HELP: I know there are many others such as Deb Lewis, Lisa Smith, Gabrielle O'Bryan and Susan Ronec who have helped in various ways and I am sure that there are many others so please, please forgive me if I haven't named you. I really appreciate all your help.

BARBEQUE: Thanks to our wonderful BBQ team of Steve Roadnight, Dick Ellis and Robyn Greene. Steve took up the challenge of running the whole shebang and did an amazing job. Also thanks to all those parents and friends of the club who helped out when they could; including Chris Bergin, Kim Lowman, Gabrielle O'Bryan, Graeme Cannon and I think I even spotted Max Jeffrey helping out with sauce (and Gary McKellar!!!). The BBQ team never fails in providing sustenance to hungry nippers and their parents whilst raising much needed funds for the club. I would also like to thank Gary McKellar for donating the sausages. This has certainly helped boost our funds.

COFFEE: Thanks also to Tina Bedford for providing heart starters to many of the parents and warm up drinks or healthy smoothies to our nippers. Tina donated \$1035 to the club from her profits.

NIPPER COMPETITION:

The competition season for our Juniors was brilliant. This side of our programme continues to grow and we now have a Competition Manager in Stacey Lethlean. Thanks Stacey for all your hard work. (There is heaps of administration behind the scenes and Stacey took this on cheerfully.) Thank you also to Jon Ford and Gavin Taylor who were also part of the Competition team.

To kick off the season, on the 4th January we had a dedicated group 30 nippers head over to Cosy Corner where many ribbons were obtained. The warm up to the States and the teams qualifying carnival for States was held at Frankston SLSC this year on the 10th February. We had a mammoth team of 125 nippers participate in this carnival. What a day it was, with the Point Leo team not only having fun but qualifying heaps of teams to go to the States. We clearly dominated and were overall winners. Then on the 1st March, another 127 went to Mount Martha and the Under 7's (right) finally got to show their stuff. Once again we had great fun and dominated the carnival.



AND THEN THE FINALE!



104 Point Leo Nippers (and their very supportive families) travelled 3 to 4 hours to compete at the State Championships at Lakes Entrance on the 8th and 9th March. For starters, this was the biggest team to attend the carnival and that in itself is a credit to our club. I had several other clubs ask me how we entice so many to go. Everywhere you looked there were orange caps. What is our secret! I am not sure; I put it down to our club spirit. It is so great that so many nippers want to go and have a crack. Not all go chasing medals, many of our nippers love the atmosphere of a carnival and love participating and it is wonderful to

see this. Point Leo has come fourth at the titles in the last two years; we have won at home but have never won away from home. I was hoping to move into third with such a large team but can you believe it, WE WON!! And it was a convincing win as the results clearly show:

| 1 st | Point Leo | 410 |
|-----------------|--------------|-------|
| 2 nd | Torquay | 358 |
| 3 rd | Mount Martha | 204.5 |
| 4 th | Williamstown | 180 |

This was an incredible result, so well done to every nipper for their contribution. Up to 6 places gets points so the depth of our team really helped us win. There were some amazing individual and team efforts that have been documented on pages 31 and 32. It was fantastic to see all our nippers cheering each other on; there was great team camaraderie. Every nipper who came to the state championships is part of the winning team, so congratulations to you all. You guys are awesome! I would also like to thank Stacey Lethlean, Steve Roadnight and all the Age Managers who did such a fantastic job over the weekend.



Finally thank you to our Club Captains for the year Anna Coldham, Matilda McLellan, Dylan Neal and Zac Richter. These Under 14's showed great dedication to Surf Life Saving and to the Point Leo SLSC.

Looking forward to next summer and another great season.

Julia O'Shaughnessy Junior Co-ordinator

Beach Report

What a great season the Beach Team has had! Our team has grown significantly since last season, which is great. We recruited a few great new Bronzies, who have shown the other clubs how good Leo really is! Sarah Gearing (below with Isabella Hartley) had a fantastic season, winning the 2km race at South Melbourne, closely followed by Clare Hudson. Clare and Kim Lipszyc have also had great seasons, placing in the top 8 for most of their events. Just for a change Tom Aliotti dominated in both U/19 and Open Men's Beach Sprint and Flags. Throughout the season Point Leo competitors consistently placed in the top 8 for the majority of events. This is a great achievement and something they should be proud of. A big thank you to Clare, Kim

and Sarah for stepping up to Open to compete in the Open Relay with me.

Natalie Johnstone Beach Captain

At the State Titles the Point Leo beach team competed in nearly every event. We had a number of competitors compete in flags, sprints, 2km, relays and for the first time this season we had Kim and Sarah compete in belt and reel, making it to the finals. A huge congratulations to all who represented Point Leo in both beach and water events. I hope next season is bigger and better. I can't wait to be running with you all next year!

R & R Report

After the 'retirement' of the Open Women's Team from Season 2007, Point Leo had a new wave of R & R teams step up in 2008 to continue the tradition. The season saw some great results, but

on the whole I feel the biggest achievement of the year was that the girls all learned to love the event and they all enjoyed themselves. We had three teams training all summer, two Under 17 teams (right) and one Under 15 team.

The older Under 17 team consisted of Charlotte Coleman, Amelia Stevens, Felicity Malesa, Philipa Van Leeuwen and Kate Sunderland. The girls grouped together last year for the State Titles and were very keen to compete again this season. They would have started the week after



States of 2007 if I had let them! Their first competition was at the always fantastic Anglesea beach. After an understandably nervous training session, the girls went on to drill a very respectable 16 for their first competition. Over the season they continued to improve getting their score down to a very consistent 10. They won the Under 17 event at both the South Melbourne and Point Leo carnivals. Unfortunately for them Ocean Grove showed their strength at States and relegated our girls to second place. Ocean Grove then went on to win the Under 17 R & R at Aussies 2008, much to the girls shock. After such a great season it is to be hoped that they can attend Aussies next year. These girls also walked away with a bronze medal in the Under 19 event.

The younger Under 17 team first competed at the Mount Martha Carnival and over three carnivals whittled their scores down from a 28 to a respectable 16. With six girls interchanging in the team it was very difficult to manage, but we got there and I am very proud of what these girls achieved. They were all passionate about the event and strove to perfect it. Over the season they came to understand what the event was about and hopefully they enjoyed themselves! They came a long way over the 12 weeks that they trained; it was a massive effort to learn the drill and become good at it in such a short space of time. The second Under 17 team members were Kim Lipszyc, Tessa Weadman, Annalee Gielb, Lucy Dewhurst, Sarah Gearing and Clare Hudson. The experience these girls didn't have, they made up for in heart. At the State Titles, in massive conditions, and even when things weren't quite going the way they had planned, they still had massive smiles and kept plugging away at the event, which was an absolute testament to the girl's work ethic throughout the season. The girls won a bronze medal in the hotly contested Under 17 event.

The Under 15 R & R team consisted of Bonnie Aliotti, Matilda McLellan, Isabella Hartley, Hannah Lethlean and Charlotte Noall, and what a team! Always entertained by these girls, Simone had an amusing time coaching them and hopefully the girls had fun too. They worked hard to learn the drill and earned a silver medal at the state titles with an excellent score of 13.



A big congratulations must also go to Dayna Laurence, Emily Cox and Mayumi Knight for coming out of retirement and showing everyone that they still have it! The Open Women's event is always hotly contested between the Ocean Grove and Point Leo clubs. This year the Open Women's Team (left) came away with the gold, drilling a five to win (yes, that's right, a five with no training!). Another big thank

you must also go to Jack Garner, who returned to the giggle fest event, the Open 6. It was great to have him back in the team!

Simone and I were very proud of the girls' efforts at States. I don't like to point out individuals, since it is a team event, but the two belt swimmers, Clare Hudson and Kate Sunderland, put in the most gutsy belt swims of their season, swimming out to those cans through eight foot surf was hard enough, but to swim out there with a line and belt attached is a different story all together! To top it off, straight after their first drill, they raced to the start line of the Under 17 Surf teams, then, when they finished there, they had to back it up in the Under 19 run through. Not once did they say they were tired (at least not to me anyway!), they just put their heads down and got on with it. Even after the event they were still smiling! It was great to see the Leo Team spirit in these up and coming Leo competitors. The surf at Jan Juc was the biggest and hardest conditions these girls faced all year and they are all to congratulated for their fantastic performances in tough conditions.

I feel that the biggest congratulations should go to all of the girls for their commitment and enthusiasm to training, their support for their team mates and just having a go. It was fantastic to see and they should all be very proud of themselves. Simone and I so proud to be your coaches.

R & R is a great event for Point Leo to be involved in as it brings all of our young competitors together at the senior carnivals and then has a flow on effect as they then compete in other individual and team events. It is a great way to introduce senior carnivals, especially to the Under 15's. Hopefully next year a few boys might want to get involved... otherwise the Leo tent will be overrun by girls!

Thanks to the parents also for all of the running around and commitment to getting the girls to training and competitions. Our job was made so much easier by the parents being so happy to get involved. Also the reels would never have made it to any of the competitions without the Aliotti Family; a big thank you to Kim, Marc and Tom for playing taxi with the reels and Lyn Sunderland as well for taking the reel to Torquay.

Personally, I would like say it is fantastic to watch the next generation of teams step up to take on the challenge and keep the Point Leo R & R tradition alive. Hopefully we will have the same sixteen girls plus a few more step up next year for an even bigger and better season.

Khali Williams R & R Co-ordinator

Board and Ski Report

I would first of all like to start out by thanking everyone for the support that the athletes at Point Leo have received over the duration of the season. The support that I am talking about has come from the club members, parents, partners, friends and most of all the Point Leo Surf Life Saving Club committee. Without all of the support that the competitors get from these people, the season would be much more challenging and we thank you for your help.

Again the season started out with some winter/spring training sessions at the club which saw some of the younger competitors in the club make the step up to senior training. The young paddlers to emerge were Zac Richter, Adam Lipszyc, (both pictured right) Pat Hough, Matilda McLellan and Hudson Keppell. It was great to see these young guys committing to training and getting amongst the older competitors. Zac and Matilda even took it to the next level and joined in with the Peninsula Regional Training group mid week and the results



showed with both of them improving their paddling throughout the season. Keep it up guys.

As for carnival results this year it was probably one to forget for the Board and Ski section. It was great to see however that we were represented in the junior sections at most, if not every

carnival. I hope that next year there will be more cadets that make the transition to senior carnivals to join the few that were there this season.

The State Titles at Jan Juc were a great reminder that craft racing in the ocean is not just about who is the fittest, but also who has the best skills. It should be the aim of every craft competitor next season to get out in surf at every chance they get. There were no outstanding results at Jan Juc, but plenty of team members having a go, which was great to see. Thanks to all those that competed.

The National Titles in Perth saw 'Team Hayd(e)n' take on the countries best, and the countries best won. It was a great experience once again to go and pit ourselves against the best and something that I would recommend to everybody. Again thank you to the committee for making this possible.

I hope to see you all and more back again next season.

Hayden Rydberg Board and Ski Section Captain

Boat Section Report

Season 2007/08 started off having the potential to be a fantastic year but unfortunately due to injuries and work commitments we saw our numbers drop off quite quickly. But with some help from the committee (mainly Simone and Khali) and others, numbers were quickly added to.

For the second year running we had the Flinders to Point Leo boat race. It was a great day for the event with 18 crews competing in fantastic weather. Jan Juc won the men's division, the women's was taken out by Woolami, and special mention goes to Port Campbell who made the long journey to win the handicap division. Thanks to John Horwood for his help and that fantastic tractor driver Max Jefferies who just didn't stop.

The main crew this year was the Under 23 Women's crew (right) consisting of Lucy Mollenkopf, Alex Mantell, Belinda Harry and Dayna Laurence, with some help along the way from Grace Wilkins and Mayumi Knight. The effort the girls put in throughout the year to learn the art of surf boat rowing was great, and I think it will put them in a great position to go on and become champions for the club. Congratulations to both Lucy and Alex on winning the Boat Rower of the Year Award; their dedication and



commitment to the sport and the club was second to none.

We also had a lot of others put an oar in the water for the first time; far too many to mention but special mention should go to Jackson Curtis, Max Wilkins and all of the other juniors. A special mention also goes to Brendan Riseley for organizing a crew of nipper dads and helpers. It was also great to see Gary McKellar out on the water again. Gary was always willing to lend a hand and to offer his support. The club is now in a position where we should start to see some real growth in the boat section.

Also thanks to Frank Weimper for his help with the training and coaching of the girls, Ron Murray for the times he took the girls rowing and Peter Gibson (Gibbo) for his help with fixing trailers and rowlocks throughout the season. The boat section would like to thank Marc Aliotti and all of the committee for their support over the 2007/08 season. To all of the members who gave a hand and just didn't stand back and wait to be asked or tell others how to do it, thank you. It is this support that makes Point Leo stand out from other clubs and not get left in the past.

Andrew Foley Boat Section Captain

Cadet Report

After being heavily involved in Nippers for the past seven years I found myself this year with no nipper and a new challenge. For the past few years I have felt that once our nippers finish their program there is nothing on offer to retain them as competitors in the senior section. In consultation with Simone we decided to run a Cadet training camp in January and follow on with some regular training sessions for the Under 15, 17 and 19 age groups. We were lucky enough to have Sara Perkins come along to the club and offer her wealth of knowledge in the Fitness, Training, Pilates and Nutrition areas at the time that we were thinking of ideas for our camp. Thanks to Chris Munro we were successful in gaining a training grant from Surf Life Saving Australia which assisted us in this endeavour. We called for applicants to attend the two day camp and ended up with seventeen participants. Sara set up a plan for the two days which included swim, board and beach sessions, a lecture on Nutrition for training and competition, guest motivational speakers, pilates and boot camp. It was an action packed two days.

I would like to thank Dave Russell and Ian Knight for running the swim session, Darren McFarlane for running the board session and Tom Aliotti and Jack Garner for running the beach session. Thanks also to Leisa Wharington, Liz Hartley and Jane Wilkins for helping with preparation of nutritional meals over the two days. Many thanks must also go to Sara Perkins for her time and expertise in the planning and running of the camp.

Following on from the camp we commenced Friday night training sessions that were reasonably well attended and something that we would like to see continue next season. The main aim for the coming season will be to encourage some of the older members to join in with these training sessions and to get our more senior, experienced competitors to assist with the running of these sessions.

Kim Aliotti Cadet Co-ordinator

Clubhouse Report

This year the caretaker arrangement was re-established with Ian and Vicki Knight taking up residence in the caretakers rooms over the summer. It was a great success; a constant adult presence helped keep the rooms and kitchen tidy. I personally found it great to walk into the kitchen area and not have to clean up before starting the BBQ. I look forward to this continuing and if possible being extended.

We seem (touch wood) to have escaped our almost annual vermin visit this year, this I think is due to the copper pipes and an established vermin control program with baits topped up monthly. The bunkroom mattresses have all been replaced with hospital grade mattresses that are easy to clean and must be much nicer to sleep on. Please do not move these to other areas of the clubhouse.

The building will always have an ongoing need for maintenance, both preventative and corrective. The working bees this year saw many small jobs completed. We still have a couple of major ones looming that will require outside contractors. However, please do try and attend the club days as there will always be plenty to do. Any tradesmen will always be bought a drink or two. This year the priority will be the kitchen area. We are still trying for grants but are widening our net a little with options to other sources being investigated.

My other hat is of course the Juniors BBQ. Al was sorely missed this year, but with Richard Ellis (the 1st) pulling even more than his weight peeling and chopping onions at home, his most generous donation of a freezer and the never ending rabble of older and past members who he somehow cajoled, bribed or threatened into attending, we again raised a substantial amount of funds for the club. Thanks Dick, I couldn't do it without you. Parents are always welcome to help, just come and see us.

Steve Roadnight Clubhouse Administrator

President's Trophies

Two President's Trophies are presented annually, one Junior and one Senior. They are the highest awards that the Club can bestow on one of its members. The Trophies are awarded on the basis of the acceptance of the duties of a member and the provision of leadership in the Club and Life Saving Victoria activities, competitive performance, fostering of team spirit and personal conduct and demeanor.

Junior President's Trophy - Tom Aliotti

Tom has been an active member of the Club in areas including Training, Competition and Social activities. Tom has always been there to assist others and advise those in his competitive disciplines. Tom was involved in training and mentoring at the Bronze Camp, the Cadet Development Camp and assisted with the Nipper Surf Education program. He also completed 51.75 hours of patrol. His achievements in the competitive arena include:

- Victorian High Performance Team member, competing in Queensland on three occasions.
- Victorian State Team U19 representative for beach sprints and flags. Tom's results in this
 national competition were 3rd in flags and 5th in the sprint.
- Represented Point Leo SLSC in all the premier Victorian carnivals during the season.
- Winner U19 Victorian beach sprint title.

Senior President's Trophy – Julia O'Shaughnessy

Julia has been an inspiration to all of us in the manner that she has promoted and run the Nipper section at Point Leo. Julia has a way of encouraging members to be involved while still keeping an informal approach. She has galvanized the club by involving the whole club in Nipper activities. Point Leo Nippers are seen by other Victorian clubs as a well run and competitive team. The emphasis is on the 'Team' and this culminated in Point Leo winning the Nippers state title in 2008. Much of the credit for the Nippers performance must go to Julia. Well done Julia.

Dick Catterick Trophy - Simone Williams

This annual award is presented in memory of the late Dick Catterick who was the clubhouse supervisor at the Willards (the old clubhouse). The award recognizes a Club member who has made an outstanding contribution to the club during the season. Simone is a tireless worker in and around the club. I see her as the key stone of the club. She is there supporting us all and shouldering an amazing amount of responsibility. If you need to know anything about surf life saving Simone is the go to girl. There is also much that she does that goes unnoticed. The club thanks her for her commitment. Simone's achievements during 2007-08 include:

- Club Captain
- Chief Instructor
- Patrolled 53 hours
- Coaching of Point Leo Under 15 R & R team
- Member of several club sub-committees
- Assisted coordination of Club Awards night
- Mentor for many younger and older members
- Member of Point Leo Open Women's 5 Person R & R Team 2008 State Champions
- Member of the LSV State Administrator Taskforce Committee
- Recipient of Victorian Government Sports Leadership for Women Grant for the purpose of building a Peninsula R & R Program
- Member of State R & R Panel
- Point Leo Delegate Lifesaving Operations Council
- Nominee for Youth Leadership and Development Council Executive
- Building Leaders Scholarship Program Transition between junior and senior sport

Marc Aliotti President

Senior Club Awards

Patroller of Year Michelle Royal-Hebblewhite

Most Valuable – Patrol 1 Anthony Zdjelarevic

Most Valuable – Patrol 2 Max Wilkins
Most Valuable – Patrol 3 Annalee Gielb

Most Valuable – Patrol 4 Natalie Johnstone, Grace Wilkins

Most Valuable – Patrol 5

Most Valuable – Patrol 6

Most Valuable – Patrol 7

Most Valuable – Patrol 7

Most Valuable – Patrol 8

Vice Captain's Award

Club Captain's Award

Michael Nunan

Camilla Humphries

Lachlan Pearse

Scott Roadnight

Scott Roadnight

Max Wilkins

Competition Awards

Board and Ski Section Zachary Richter
Swim Section Hayden Rydberg
Beach Section Sarah Gearing

R & R Charlotte Coleman, Kate Sunderland, Philipa Van

Leeuwen, Felicity Malesa, Amelia Stevens

Boat Rowing Alexandra Mantell
Boat Rowing Encouragement Lucy Mollenkopf
Junior Anna Coldham

Point Leo SLSC Club Champions

Senior

Open Hayden Rydberg Natalie Johnstone, Khali Williams
Masters Clayton Macdonald Melinda Kemp
U19 Tom Denehy Charlotte Coleman
U17 James Coldham Kate Sunderland
U15 Zachary Richter Isabella Hartley

Junior

U8 U9 U10 U11 U12

U13 Hudson Keppell

U14 Zachary Richter Anna Coldham

Junior and Senior Combined

U11 Tube Race Fergal Utri, Tom Denehy Olivia Cook, Kate Sunderland
U12 Swim Relay Robbie Bergin, Barney Frankish Abby Lethlean, Melissa Bird

U13 Board Rescue Hudson Keppell, Hayden Forrest Hilary Van Leeuwen, Amelia Stevens U14 Beach Relay Zachary Richter, Pat Brown, Julia Bergin, Matilda McLellan, Isabella

Matthew McMahon, Tom Aliotti Hartley, Kim Aliotti

Junior Club Awards

Jill McKellar Junior of the Year Zachary Richter Co-ordinator's Award Alexandra Tulloch Most Dedicated Matilda McLellan

SLSA President's Medal Award

Congratulations to Life Member Geoffrey Waters on being awarded the Surf Life Saving Australia President's Medal. This medal, awarded to only 16 members of the SLSA community, recognises Geoffrey's commitment to R & R at club, state and national levels. He has coached many teams to State and National finals, and collected a vast number of national medals at Point Leo, Ocean Grove, Torquay and Jan Juc. A well recognised coach within national R & R circles, Geoff heads the Victorian R & R panel and is chairperson of the National R & R Advisory Council.

Minutes of Annual General Meeting 2006/2007 Point Leo Surf Life Saving Club Inc Point Leo Clubhouse 4.00 pm 25 August, 2007

1. Welcome

The President, Richard Ellis welcomed members and guests to the meeting.

Attendance

L. Gibson, A. Gibson, Alf Treadwell, Anne Treadwell, B. Mollenkopf, T. Mollenkopf, L. Mollenkopf, M. Jeffery, A. Buxton, A. Mansour, T. Aliotti, M. Aliotti, N. Johnstone, Kim Williams, Z. Richter, G. Hartley, R. Griffiths, R. Ellis, R. Horwood, L. Treadwell, M. Treadwell, J. O'Shaughnessy, B. Riseley, A. Foley, S. Merrigan, P. Whillans, P. Ford, P. Gibson, J. Polmear, L. Johnson, H. Rydberg, Khali Williams, S. Williams, J. Horwood, G. Tierney, L. Tierney, S. Garner, D. Laurence, K. Aliotti, C. Munro, M. Royal-Hebblewhite, S. Roadnight, M. Roadnight, V. Roadnight, A. Wood, J. Wood, E. Ellis, T. Ellis. **Apologies**

M. Mollenkopf, I. Johnstone, C. Johnstone, T. Brawn, J. Forsyth, B. Coombs, Van Leeuwen Family, D. Russell, I. Knight, Dick Ellis Snr, E. Cox, J. Ellis, R. Murray, C. Murray, P. Merrigan, J. Merrigan, Kelly Family, L. Young, F. Forrest, M. Tierney, H. Tierney, C. Rydberg, G. Rydberg, J. Treadwell, M. Lacey, A. Barnes, S. Barnes

2. Confirmation of Minutes of 2006 AGM

The minutes of the 2006 Annual General Meeting were confirmed Moved: G Tierney Seconded: S Williams

3. Business arising from the 2006 Meeting

There were no matters arising.

4. Adoption of the 2006/2007 Annual Report

The Annual Report was tabled. The President provided an overview of the year's activities, noting:

- It had been a quiet year compared with some previous years with a focus on having fun and enjoying the beach
- Patrols had suffered from a shortage of qualified IRB drivers and crew. This was acknowledged by LSV as a problem for all clubs resulting from the more onerous training requirements
- Financially the Club had effectively been 'square' or balanced for the year
- The passing of Life Member John Williams during the year

Richard acknowledged the support of the Foreshore Management Committee and the work of the Club Committee. He was standing down as Club President and would be happy to continue to provide support from behind the scenes.

Club Captain, Simone Williams asked that her written report be supplemented with thanks to Khali Williams, especially for her work on the Club Uniform.

It was resolved to adopt the Annual Report

Moved: T Mollenkopf Seconded: A Treadwell

5. Adoption of the Financial Statements for the year ended 30 April 2007

There were no questions on the Financial Statements. Richard Ellis expressed his gratitude for Kim Williams' pursuit of accuracy in the accounts.

It was resolved to accept the Financial Statements.

Moved: S Roadnight Seconded: G Tierney

The order of business of the meeting was amended to consider awards and life membership prior to the election of Office Bearers

6. Club Awards

The President presented the following Club Awards

- President's Award Junior: Jack Garner
- President's Award Senior: Andrew Folev
- Dick Catterick Award: Andrew Gibson

7. Consideration of Life Membership Nominations

Life Member and Past President Gary Tierney was invited to introduce the criteria and process for election as a Life Member of the Club.

The following Club Members, having met the criteria for Life Membership as determined by the current Life Members, were elected as Life Members by Acclamation:

Alistair Buxton (Moved J Horwood)
 Peter Gibson (Moved P Whillans)
 Alf Treadwell (Moved T Mollenkopf)

8. Election of Office Bearers

Nominations were received for the position of President from Andrew Gibson and Marc Aliotti. Following a secret ballot, Marc Aliotti was elected Club President.

The following positions were filled unopposed:

| Secretary | Andrew Gibson | JAB Co-Ordinator | Julia O'Shaughnessy |
|---------------------|----------------------------|-----------------------|----------------------------|
| Treasurer | Kim Williams | Cadet Co-Ordinator | Kim Aliotti |
| Captain | Simone Williams | House Administrator | Steve Roadnight |
| Vice Captain | Andrew Gibson | Gear Steward | |
| Swim Captain | | First Aid Officer | Michelle Royal-Hebblewhite |
| Boat Captain | Andrew Foley | Mine Editor | |
| Board & Ski Captain | Hayden Rydberg | Social Secretary | Emily Cox |
| Beach Captain | Natalie Johnstone | Senior Vice President | Richard Ellis |
| Chief Instructor | Simone Williams | Vice President (1) | John Horwood |
| SC Delegate | Michelle Royal-Hebblewhite | Vice President (2) | Khali Williams |
| Radio Officer | | Vice President (1) | Tom Mollenkopf |
| Team Manager | | Vice President (1) | Gary Tierney |
| IRB Captain | Luke Treadwell | Vice President (2) | Alf Treadwell |
| Registrar | Kim Williams | Vice President (1) | James Keeran |

9. Long Service and Active Reserve Nominations

There were no nominations for long service or active reserve.

10. General Business

a. Affiliation with LSV

It was resolved to seek affiliation for the 2007/2008 season with Life Saving Victoria. Further, that the articles, constitution, by-laws, regulations and resolutions together with the awards and equipment of Surf Life Saving Australia Limited and/or affiliated state/territory centres and/or affiliated branches be accepted without reservation. Moved: Gary Tierney Seconded: Simone Williams

b. Membership Fees

It was resolved that, in accordance with Rule 4 of the Constitution, membership fees for the 2007/2008 season should increase as follows:

- Junior Activity Members from \$50 to \$70
- Associate Members from \$65 to \$75
- Family Membership from \$160 to \$200 (2 Adults and 2 Students living at home)
- Additional family members who are students living at home from \$15 to \$20 each
- All other membership fees shall remain as for season 2006/2007

Moved: John Horwood Seconded: Khali Williams

c. Other

There was no other business of which due notice had been given. There was a discussion on preservation and display of Club memorabilia.

11. Close of Meeting

The meeting closed at 5.00pm and was followed by dinner

Andrew Gibson Hon Secretary

Patrol Hours 2007/2008

| i ati oi i iou | 13 200 | 112000 | | | | | |
|-----------------------------|--------|------------------------|-------|---------------------|-------|----------------------|------|
| Royal-Hebblewhite, Michelle | 136.75 | Woods, Nicholas | 31 | Russo, Ellie | 16.5 | Smith, Harrison | 6.5 |
| Curtis, Jackson | 115.5 | Ellis, Thomas | 30 | Strauks, Matthew | 16.5 | Greene, Madeline | 6.25 |
| Roadnight, Scott | 93.5 | Hartley, Lily | 30 | Clement, Sophie | 16 | Mollenkopf, Max | 6 |
| Gearing, David | 91.75 | Pearse, Lachlan | 30 | Jeffries, Annabelle | 16 | Treadwell, Julia | 6 |
| Gibson, Andrew | 85.25 | Cameron, Isabelle | 29.75 | Kenyon, Christopher | 16 | Birch, Philippa | 5 |
| Lipszyc, Kimberley | 83.5 | McMahon, Maddison | 29.75 | Gawn, Max | 15.5 | Chaban, Sandra | 5 |
| Wilkins, Max | 80.5 | Coldham, Anna | 29 | Keeran, James | 15.5 | Tierney, Mark | 5 |
| Dewhurst, Lucy | 64.5 | Mansour, Julia | 29 | McDonald, Fraser | 15.5 | Cooper, Thomas | 4 |
| Ellis, Richard | 62 | Mollenkopf, Lucinda | 29 | Sunderland, Kate | 15.5 | Keeran, Emily | 4 |
| Richter, Zachary | 58.5 | Niall, Asha | 29 | Cox, Emily | 15 | Hughes, Amelia | 3.5 |
| Gielb, Annalee | 54.25 | Forrest, Hayden | 28.75 | Coy, Tom | 15 | May, Alexander | 3 |
| Williams, Simone | 53 | Hough, Patrick | 28.75 | Dalton, Emily | 15 | Starr, Joshua | 3 |
| Van Leeuwen, Philippa | 52.5 | Wigan, Jessica | 28.75 | Hudson, Ehren | 15 | Burdon-Smith, Linnea | 2.5 |
| Aliotti, Tom | 51.75 | Johnstone, Natalie | 28 | Malesa, Felicity | 15 | Cannon, Anastatia | 2.5 |
| Hudson, Clare | 51.75 | Zdjelarevic, Shane | 28 | Lorkin, Fraser | 14.75 | Cannon, Victoria | 2.5 |
| Foley, Andrew | 51 | Morey, Max | 27.5 | Pressley, Charlotte | 14.75 | Cherry, Anais | 2.5 |
| Wilkins, Grace | 51 | Riseley, Emily | 27.5 | Wesley, Kayla-Jane | 14.75 | Dunton, Tasman | 2.5 |
| Lethlean, Hannah | 50.75 | Gearing, Sarah | 27 | Turner, Tabatha | 14.25 | Greene, Edward | 2.5 |
| Coleman, Charlotte | 49.5 | Harry, Belinda | 27 | Burke, Nicholas | 14 | Stevens, Amelia | 2 |
| Wilkins, Phillipa | 47.25 | Hough, Emily | 27 | Robinson, Nathan | 14 | Bramwell, Eliza | 0 |
| Russell, David | 47 | Maclean, Jack | 26.5 | Brown, Rosie | 13.75 | Brown, Myles | 0 |
| Laurence, Dayna | 46 | Lipszyc, Adam | 25.75 | Heggie, Daniel | 13 | Clifford, Amelia | 0 |
| Bell, Chris | 45.5 | Paton, Blane | 25.25 | Coldham, James | 12.25 | Dunn, Camilla | 0 |
| Howell, Jackson | 45.25 | Mantell, Alexandra | 24.25 | Griffiths, Ronald | 12 | Fish, Alexandra | 0 |
| McDonald, Clayton | 45 | Gearing, Peter | 24 | Hughes, Harriet | 12 | Fish, Georgia | 0 |
| Roadnight, Miranda | 45 | Mills, Neil | 24 | Taylor, Rebecca | 12 | Kalnins, Catherine | 0 |
| Howell, Thomas | 44.75 | Rowley, Kane | 24 | Brown, Thomas | 11 | Leach, Georgia | 0 |
| Gibb, Harriet | 43 | Utri, Garry | 23.5 | Dewhurst, Amy | 11 | Moore, Patrick | 0 |
| McInneny-McRae, Kari | 40.5 | Frankish, Barnaby | 23 | Kempton, Paul | 11 | Powell, Sam | 0 |
| Aliotti, Bonnie | 40.25 | Tierney, Haydn | 23 | McCarthy, Vincent | 11 | Stawell, Caroline | 0 |
| Harrington, Anna | 40 | McMahon, Matthew | 22.75 | Keeran, Charlie | 10 | Stawell, Edwina | 0 |
| Bird, Jessica | 39 | Farrar, Madeleine | 22.5 | Keeran, Thomas | 10 | Sunderland, Jessica | 0 |
| Garner, Jack | 38 | Norman, Daniel | 22.25 | Nott, Callum | 10 | Tardif, Mathew | 0 |
| Mollenkopf, Thomas | 38 | Munro, Chris | 22 | Kottek, Wilga | 9.5 | Wheldale, Scott | 0 |
| Jones, Morgan | 37 | Keppell, Hudson | 21.25 | Neal, Dylan | 9.25 | Ymer, Jack | 0 |
| Weadman, Tessa | 36.25 | Utri, Liam | 21 | Axten, Eliza | 9 | | |
| Clifford, Robert | 36 | Hartley, Isabella | 20.5 | Backhausen, Stefan | 9 | | |
| Zdjelarevic, Anthony | 36 | Young, William | 20.5 | Strauks, Anita | 8.5 | | |
| Elson, Julia | 35.75 | Christian, Francis | 20 | Charlton, Zac | 8 | | |
| Bird, Melissa | 35 | Garner, Simone | 20 | Cooper, Michael | 8 | | |
| Nunan, Michael | 35 | Grierson, Todd | 20 | Forrest, James | 8 | | |
| Williams, Khali | 34.5 | Humphries, Camilla | 20 | Frankish, Monty | 8 | | |
| Smith, Natassia | 34 | Jones, Warwick | 20 | Godfree, Alice | 8 | | |
| Young, James | 34 | Nunan, Benjamin | 20 | Hartley, Gary | 8 | | |
| Howell, Morgan | 33 | Breadmore, Rebecca | 19.75 | Knight, lan | 8 | | |
| McLellan, Matilda | 32.5 | OBrien, Tim | 19.5 | Neal, David | 8 | | |
| Forrest, Angus | 32.25 | Royal-Hebblewhite, Gus | 19.5 | Roth, Caroline | 8 | | |
| Brown, Patrick | 31.5 | Bergin, Julia | 19.25 | Rydberg, Hayden | 8 | | |
| Curtis, Harriette | 31.5 | Brown, Hamish | 19 | Shaw, Matilda | 8 | | |
| Hamilton, Emily | 31.5 | Dalton, Sarah | 19 | Sweetman, Elise | 8 | | |
| Tulloch, Alexandra | 31.5 | Ellis, Euan | 19 | Veliades, Nicholas | 8 | | |
| Noall, Charlotte | 31.25 | Treadwell, Luke | 18 | Denehy, Thomas | 7 | | |
| Coy, Georgia | 31 | Turner, Holly | 17.5 | Sloggett, Jackson | 7 | | |
| Feller, Julian | 31 | Lam, Alexandra | 17 | Bickers, Charlee | 6.5 | | |
| Knight, Mayumi | 31 | Marshall, Ben | 17 | Dueringe, Joshua | 6.5 | | |
| Treadwell, Michael | 31 | Barnett, Jarrod | 16.5 | McFarlane, Thomas | 6.5 | | |

Life Saving Awards

Advanced Resuscitation

Charlotte Coleman
Jackson Curtis
David Gearing
Wilga Kottek
Kimberley Lipszyc
Amelia Stevens
Max Wilkins

Bronze MedallionMitchell Allenby
Eliza Axten

Stefan Backhausen Justin Ballingall Chris Bell Ella Bell Melissa Bird Daniel Briglia Anthony Brooks Patrick Brown

Jayden Brown-Harris
Graham Cannon
Jake Cattlin
Catherine Clancy
Wade Cochrane
Georgia Coy
Harriette Curtis
Lucy Dewhurst
Tasman Dunton
Julia Elson

Hayden Forrest Kieran Forrester Elouise Gavin Max Gawn Sarah Gearing Annalee Gielb

Shakira Evans

Brandon Finch

Jasper Fleming

Emily Hamilton Tim Harding Anna Harrington

Colin Hoad
Jake Hollway
Jason Horkings
Jessica Hough
Jackson Howell

Morgan Howell Clare Hudson

Benjamin Ingram
Jake Ingram
Annabelle Jeffries
Kyle Johnston
Warwick Jones
Charlie Keeran
Paul Kempton
Christopher Kenyon

Bronze Medallion

Wilga Kottek
Jonathon Lazarus
Shannyn Lewis
Kimberley Lipszyc
Fraser Lorkin
Jack Maclean
Julia Mansour
Guy Marsden
Vincent McCarthy
Kari McInneny-McRae
Maddison McMahon

Jacqui Miller
Max Morey
Bruce Mourney
Chris Munro
Asha Niall

Svea Nord DAlton Tim OBrien

Julia OShaughnessy Lachlan Pearse Kieran Perry-Aubrey

Sam Powell
Adam Redhouse
Brendan Riseley
Dana Sawyer
Matilda Shaw
Natassia Smith
Dianne Summers
Alison Taylor
Kristy Theissling
Holly Turner
Garry Utri

Tessa Weadman Zachary Williams Samuel Wise Nicholas Woods Jack Ymer

Shane Zdjelarevic

Certificate II in Public Safety

(Aquatic Rescue)
Chris Munro
Julia OShaughnessy

Kristy Theissling Garry Utri Nicholas Woods

Defibrillation Certificate

Tom Aliotti

Charlotte Coleman
Jackson Curtis
Thomas Ellis
Simone Garner
Madeline Greene
Ronald Griffiths
Anna Harrington

Dayna Laurence

Defibrillation Certificate

Kimberley Lipszyc
Thomas Mollenkopf
Amelia Stevens
Grace Wilkins
Max Wilkins
Simone Williams
IRB Crew Certificate

Andrew Foley
Ronald Griffiths
Anna Harrington
Belinda Harry
Wilga Kottek
Kimberley Lipszyc
Ben Marshall
Blane Paton
Garry Utri

Senior First Aid Certificate

Tom Aliotti
Jackson Curtis
Emily Hough
Peter Keppell
Dayna Laurence
Chris Munro
Grace Wilkins
Max Wilkins

Nicholas Woods

Anthony Zdjelarevic Shane Zdjelarevic Silver Medallion Basic Beach Management Monty Frankish

Silver Medallion IRB Driver

David Gearing
Ronald Griffiths
Michael Treadwell
Surf Rescue Certificate

(CPR Endorsed)
Lily Anderson
Julia Bergin
Charlee Bickers
Myles Brown

Rosie Brown

Linnea Burdon-Smith Nicholas Burke Anastatia Cannon Victoria Cannon Anna Coldham Tom Coy

Joshua Dueringe Peter Gearing Lily Hartley Patrick Hough Ehren Hudson Hudson Keppell Adam Lipszyc Surf Rescue Certificate (CPR Endorsed)

Alexander May Thomas McFarlane Matilda McLellan **Dvlan Neal** Callum Nott Charlotte Pressley Zachary Richter **Emily Riseley** Jackson Sloggett Harrison Smith Joshua Starr Anita Strauks Elise Sweetman Rebecca Taylor Alexandra Tulloch Tabatha Turner Scott Wheldale Jessica Wigan William Young **Boat Sweep**

Accreditation

Andrew Foley

Senior State Title Results

| Senior State Title Resu | ItS | |
|------------------------------------|---------------|---|
| U/15 5 Person R & R | 2nd | Isabella Hartley, Hannah Lethlean, Matilda McLellan, Charlotte Noall, Bonnie Aliotti |
| U/15 Women's Board Relay | 4th | Hannah Lethlean, Isabella Hartley, Matilda McLellan |
| U/15 Women's Beach Relay | 3rd | Hannah Lethlean, Emily Riseley, Bonnie Aliotti, Isabella Hartley |
| U/17 Women's Belt & Reel | 4th | Sarah Gearing, Kimberley Lipszyc |
| U/17 Women's Surf Teams | 4th | Kate Sunderland, Clare Hudson, Kimberley Lipszyc, Felicity Malesa |
| U/17 5 Person R & R | 2nd A team | Kate Sunderland, Amelia Stevens, Philippa Van Leeuwen, Felicity Malesa, Charlotte Coleman |
| U/17 5 Person R & R | 3rd B team | Sarah Gearing, Kimberley Lipszyc, Tessa Weadman, Lucy Dewhurst, Clare Hudson |
| U/19 Men's Rescue Tube Rescue Race | 3rd | Lachlan Pearse, Jack Garner, Tom Denehy, Matt McMahon |
| U/19 Men's Beach Relay | 4th | Tom Aliotti, Chris Bell, Jack Garner, Matt McMahon |
| U/19 5 Person R & R | 3rd A team | Kate Sunderland, Amelia Stevens, Philippa Van Leeuwen, Felicity Malesa, Charlotte Coleman |
| U/19 5 Person R & R | 4th B team | Sarah Gearing, Tessa Weadman, Lucy Dewhurst, Annalee Gielb, Clare Hudson |
| Open Men's Rescue Tube Rescue Race | 6th | Lachlan Pearse, Jack Garner, Tom Denehy, Matt McMahon |
| Open 6 Person R & R | 4th | Khali Williams, Simone Williams, Dayna Laurence, Mayumi Knight, Emily Cox, Jack Garner |
| Open Women's 5 Person R & R | 1st | Khali Williams, Simone Williams, Dayna Laurence, Mayumi Knight, Emily Cox |
| Open Women's Beach Relay | 6th | Natalie Johnstone, Sarah Gearing, Kimberley Lipszyc, Clare Hudson |
| U/15 Women's 2km Run | 4th | Isabella Hartley |
| U/15 Women's 2km Run | 5th | Hannah Lethlean |
| U/17 Women's Surf Race | 6th | Kate Sunderland |
| U/17 Women's Tube Race | 4th | Kate Sunderland |
| U/17 Women's 2km Run | 2nd | Sarah Gearing |
| U/17 Women's 2km Run | 5th | Clare Hudson |
| U/19 Men's Surf Race | 5th | Tom Denehy |
| U/19 Men's Surf Race | 6th | Lachlan Pearse |
| U/19 Men's Beach Sprint | 1st | Tom Aliotti |
| U/19 Men's Belt Race | 3rd | Tom Denehy |
| U/19 Men's Belt Race | 5th | Lachlan Pearse |
| Open Women's Belt Race | 1st | Kate Sunderland |
| Open Women's Belt Race | 3rd | Dayna Laurence |
| Open Men's Surf Race | 5th | Hayden Rydberg |
| Open Ironman | 4th | Hayden Rydberg |
| Over 24 Men's Restricted Surf Race | 1st | Hayden Rydberg |
| Over 24 Men's Restricted Surf Race | 6th | Haydn Tierney |

Masters State Title Results

| 40+ Men's Tube Race | 1st | David Russell |
|------------------------|-----|---|
| 40+ Men's Surf Race | 2nd | David Russell |
| 40+ Men's Ironman Race | 3rd | Clayton Macdonald |
| 40+ Men's Ski Race | 3rd | Clayton Macdonald |
| 40+ Men's Board Rescue | 3rd | Clayton Macdonald / David Russell |
| 40+ Men's Surf Teams | 3rd | David Russell / Rodney Keppell |
| 40+ Men's Taplin Relay | 5th | David Russell / Clayton Macdonald / Andrew Gibson |
| 55+ Men's Board Race | 4th | Andrew Gibson |
| 55+ Men's Tube Race | 3rd | Andrew Gibson |
| 55+ Men's Beach Sprint | 2nd | Andrew Gibson |
| 55+ Men's Surf Race | 2nd | Andrew Gibson |
| | | |

Junior State Title Results

| Junior State | | | | | |
|----------------|--------------------|------------|--------------------|--------------------|-------|
| Under 9 | Event | Place | Under 11 | Event | Place |
| Andrew Nott | 500m Run | 3rd | Team Events | Boys Surf Teams | A 1st |
| Tully Scales | Wade Race | 1st | | Boys Surf Teams | B 4th |
| | Beach Flags | 4th | | Boys Beach Relay | 1st |
| Brittany Ronec | Board Race | 2nd | | Boys Board Relay | 3rd |
| | Wade Race | 5th | | Boys Wade Relay | 1st |
| | Iron Nipper | 4th | | Girls Board Relay | A 1st |
| | Beach Sprint | 1st | | Girls Board Relay | B 3rd |
| Jemima Russell | 500m Run | 1st | | Girls Surf Teams | A 1st |
| Team Events | Girls Wade Relay | 1st | | Girls Surf Teams | B 2nd |
| | Girls Beach Relay | 2nd | | Girls Wade Relay | 3rd |
| | Girls Board Relay | 5th | | Girls Aqua Cameron | A 1st |
| | Boys Beach Relay | 6th | | Girls Aqua Cameron | B 3rd |
| | Boys Board Relay | 4th | | Girls Aqua Cameron | C 4th |
| | Boys Wade Relay | 5th | Under 12 | | |
| Under 10 | | | Amber Lewis | Surf Race | 5th |
| James Wiseman | Wade Race | 2nd | | Iron Nipper | 5th |
| | Beach Sprint | 2nd | Abby Lethlean | Iron Nipper | 4th |
| | Beach Flags | 3rd | Laetitia Wiseman | Beach Sprint | 6th |
| | 500m Run | 1st | Gabrielle Beaumont | 1km Run | 1st |
| Aisling Utri | Wade Race | 1st | Team Events | Boys Surf Teams | 3rd |
| J | 500m Run | 2nd | | Boys Aqua Cameron | 3rd |
| Ella Taylor | Wade Race | 2nd | | Boys Board Rescue | 3rd |
| , | Beach Flags | 1st | | Girls Beach Relay | 3rd |
| Heidi Starr | Wade Race | 6th | | Girls Board Relay | 3rd |
| Jemma Allsopp | Iron Nipper | 4th | | Girls Aqua Cameron | A 1st |
| Kate Brooks | Beach Flags | 5th | | Girls Aqua Cameron | B 4th |
| Team Events | Girls Wade Relay | A 2nd | | Girls Board Rescue | 1st |
| | Girls Wade Relay | B 5th | | Girls Surf Teams | 1st |
| | Girls Board Relay | 6th | | Girls Wade Relay | 3rd |
| | Girls Surf Teams | A 3rd | Under 13 | onio rrado riolay | 0.4 |
| | Girls Surf Teams | B 6th | Tom Allsopp | Board Race | 6th |
| | Girls Aqua Cameron | 4th | тотт тысорр | Iron Nipper | 4th |
| | Girls Beach Relay | A 2nd | Conor Utri | 1km Run | 3rd |
| | Girls Beach Relay | B 5th | Conor Car | Beach Sprint | 4th |
| | Boys Aqua Cameron | 6th | | Beach Flags | 6th |
| | Boys Beach Relay | 4th | Callum Nott | Beach Sprint | 5th |
| Under 11 | Doy's Deadif Relay | 701 | Odildiii Nott | 1km Run | 1st |
| Jess Mourney | Beach Sprint | 5th | Peter Gearing | 1km Run | 5th |
| ocss Mourney | Beach Flags | 1st | Hudson Keppell | Surf Race | 2nd |
| | 500m Run | 2nd | riddson Roppell | Board Race | 2nd |
| Olivia Keppell | Iron Nipper | 5th | | Iron Nipper | 2nd |
| Billee Bickers | Surf Race | 6th | | Beach Sprint | 1st |
| Niamh Bourke | Surf Race | 2nd | | 1km Run | 4th |
| Lucy Welsh | Iron Nipper | 2nd | Team Events | Boys Wade Relay | 1st |
| Lucy Weisii | Board Race | 2nd 2nd | ream Events | Boys Surf Teams | 3rd |
| Fergal Utri | Beach Sprint | 2nd 2nd | | Boys Aqua Cameron | 2nd |
| Fraser Nott | • | 6th | | • | 1st |
| riasei Noll | Beach Sprint | | | Boys Beach Relay | |
| | 500m Run | 1st | | Boys Board Rescue | A 1st |
| Colob Cross | Beach Flags | 4th | | Boys Board Rescue | B 6th |
| Caleb Gray | 500m Run | 4th | | Boys Board Relay | 1st |
| | Beach Sprint | 5th | | | |
| | Iron Nipper | 4th | | | |
| | Surf Race | 2nd | | | |

| Under 14 | | | Team Events | Girls Aqua Cameron | B 4th |
|-----------------|--------------|-----|--------------------|--------------------|-------|
| Jessica Wigans | Beach Flags | 3rd | | Girls Aqua Cameron | A 6th |
| Julia Bergin | 1km Run | 5th | | Girls Beach Relay | 1st |
| Anna Coldham | Beach Sprint | 6th | | Girls Board Rescue | 2nd |
| | 1km Run | 3rd | | Girls Wade Relay | 1st |
| Charlee Bickers | Surf Race | 4th | | Girls Board Relay | A 3rd |
| Adam Lipszyc | Beach Flags | 6th | | Girls Board Relay | B 6th |
| | _ | | | Girls Belt & Reel | 5th |
| | | | | Girls Surf Teams | 2nd |

Point Leo Swim Classic Results

| Age | Male | Female |
|-------|-------------------|-------------------|
| 19-29 | Sam Sheppard | Ebony Ebenwaldner |
| <=18 | Mark O'Donnell | Emera Galletly |
| 30-39 | Ben Marshall | Jacqui Hansen |
| 40-44 | Colin Davis | Sandra Stewart |
| 45-49 | Chris Andrew | Melinda Kemp |
| 50-54 | Francis Christian | Dee Sheffin |
| 55-59 | Gary Tierney | Maree Tuff |
| >60 | Colin Shugg | Rosa Montague |

Supporters

The Point Leo Surf Life Saving Club appreciates the support received from during Season 2007/08:













Balnarring & District Community Bank® Project Bendigo Bank

Vantage Fuels
Ritchies Balnarring
Elite Trophies
Macquarie Bank Foundation
KPMG (Mark Hopkinson)

Richard Ellis (Snr)
Hastings Tyre Service,
McMahon and Utri Builder
AHL (Ross Blair-Holt)

Membership List

Active (15-18 yrs) Aliotti, Tom Allenby, Mitchell Axten, Eliza Backhausen, Stefan Barnett, Jarrod Bell, Chris Birch, Philippa Bramwell, Eliza Brown, Hamish Brown, Patrick Brown, Thomas Brown-Harris, Jayden Charlton, Zac Coldham, James Coleman, Charlotte Cooper, Thomas Curtis, Jackson Dalton, Emily Dunton, Tasman Ellis, Thomas Finch, Brandon Fish, Alexandra Forrest, Angus Gielb, Annalee Greene, Madeline Grierson, Todd Harris, Brett Howell, Thomas Hudson, Clare Hughes, Amelia Ingram, Benjamin Ingram, Jake Johnston, Kyle Jones, Morgan Keeran, Amy Keeran, Charlie Keeran, Thomas Kenyon, Christopher Lam, Alexandra Malesa, Felicity Mansour, Julia Moore, Patrick Nord DAlton, Svea Norman, Daniel Nunan, Michael Pearse, Lachlan Perry-Aubrey, Kieran Roadnight, Scott Robinson, Nathan Roth, Caroline Rowley, Kane Royal-Hebblewhite, Gus Shaw, Matilda Stevens, Amelia Sunderland, Kate Svarc, Rachel Tardif, Mathew

Van Leeuwen, Philippa Weigler, Janelle Wheldale, Reece Wilkins, Grace Wilkins, Max Wise, Samuel Young, James Zdjelarevic, Shane Active (18yrs & over) Abrahams, Damian Aliotti, Marc Anderson, James Anderson, Rose Bird, Jessica Chaban, Sandra Clifford, Amelia Cox, Emily Dalton, Sarah Denehy, Thomas Dewhurst, Amy Ellis, Euan Ellis, Richard Foley, Andrew Forrest, James Frankish, Barnaby Frankish, Monty Garner, Jack Garner, Simone Gawn, Adam Gearing, David Gibb, Harriet Gibson, Andrew Gregory, Hayley Griffiths, Adriana Griffiths, Ronald Harry, Belinda Hartley, Gary Heggie, Daniel Hough, Emily House, Janis Humphries, Camilla Johnstone, Natalie Kalnins, Catherine Keeran, Emily Keeran, Felicity Keeran, James Keeran, Louise Kempton, Paul Knight, Mayumi Lacey, Morgan Laurence, Dayna Leach, Georgia Mack, Hamilton Mantell, Alexandra McDonald, Fraser McMahon, Matthew Mezger, Simon

Mills, Neil

Mollenkopf, Lucinda Mollenkopf, Max Mollenkopf, Thomas Nunan, Benjamin Roadnight, Miranda Royal-Hebblewhite, Michelle Rydberg, Hayden Stawell, Caroline Stawell, Edwina Sunderland, Jessica Tierney, Haydn Tierney, Mark Treadwell, Julia Treadwell, Luke Treadwell, Michael Veliades, Nicholas Williams, Khali Williams, Simone Wood, Andrew Woods, Adam Zdjelarevic, Anthony **Associate** Abrahams, Sandra Aliotti, Kim Anderson, Kelvin Anderson, Susanne Ashton, Steven Atkinson, Janet Ballingall, Justin Barnes, Sandra Batchelor, Richard Beilby, Greg Bergin, Chris Bergin, Peter Blackshaw, Caroline Blackshaw, Jeremy Blair-Holt, Ross Bounds, Alan Briggs, Jamie Briglia, Daniel Brooks, Anthony Burke, Anthony Burke, Cathy Burstin, Leon Burstin, Tania Cameron, Ann Cameron, Fergus Campbell, Graeme Cannon, Graham Carson, Ian Carson, Simone Cassell, Iris Clancy, Catherine Colman, George

Colman, Katharine

Curtis, Carver

Curtis, Lynne

Curtin, Marie-Louise

Davenport, Clyde Davenport, Debbie Davenport, Elisabeth Davenport, Lauren Davies, Sonya De Valle, Sarah Denehy, Andrew Denehy, Laura Denehy, Linda Dobie, Anthony Doherty, Paul Doherty, Tara Donnellan, Scott Dunton, Jann Edmonds, Amber Edmonds, William Egan, Elizabeth Ellis, Jenny Farrar, Alan Farrar, Kate Feller, Julian Feller, Toni Fish, Anne Fish, Richard Ford, Jon Ford, Michele Forrest, Andrew Forrest, Fiona Frankish, Geoffrey Fry, Martin Garner, Katrina Garner, Peter Gayfer, Michael Gearing, Julie Gibb, David Greene, Daniel Greene, Robyn Hammond, Fiona Hartley, Simon Hill, Louise Hill, Murray Hoad, Colin Holmes, Gabrielle Hopkinson, Anne Hopkinson, Mark Hough, Jessica Hughes, Linda Hughes, Patrick Jeffrey, Maxwell Johnstone, Chris Johnstone, Irene Jones, Ian Jones, Lesley Kay, Ted Keppell, Alison Keppell, Peter Keppell, Rodney Kevin, Mark

Knight, Vicki Kottek, Wilga Latchford, Prudence Lazarus, Jonathon Leahy, Judy Lethlean, Mark Lethlean, Stacey Lipszyc, Jack Lopes, Monique Luke, Bronwyn Luke, Carl Malesa, Deborah Mansour, Andrew Mansour, Anna Mansour, Katherine Mansour, Michael Mansour, Suellen Marsden, Guy McConville, Janet McCormick, Neil McGowan, Reid McKenzie, Glen McKenzie, Tracey McMahon, Mairead Merrigan, Peter Miller, Jacqui Mitchell, Kylie Mollenkopf, Brooke Morgenthaler, Tracey Mourney, Bruce Munro, Chris Neal, David Niall, David O'Bryan, Gabrielle OShaughnessy, Julia Paton, Blane Paton, Rowena Perkins, Sara Poon, Anthony Poon, Eileen Redhouse, Adam Rethus, Amanda Riseley, Brendan Roadnight, Steve Roberts, Tonya Ross, Fraser Royal-Hebblewhite, Mark Russell, Sharon Rydberg, Christine Sawyer, Dana Smith, Dale Solomon, David Solomon, Erica Sowerby, Lorraine Sowerby, Roger Stanley, Davina Starr, Jane

Starr, Michael

Stephen, David Stephen, Sally Stern, Kate Summers, Dianne Sunderland, Lynne Taylor, Alison Taylor, Donna Taylor, Gavin Theissling, Kristy Thiele, David Thiele, Sarah Tierney, Louise Treadwell, Anne Tulloch, Charles Tulloch, Jody Turner, Melanie Turner, Murray Turner, Vince Udechuki, Adaobi Utri, Garry Van Leeuwen, Andrew Van Leeuwen, Elizabeth Wagstaff, Barbara Walker, Bruce Walker, Graham Walker, Wendy Warby, Alan Waters, Neil Welsh, Andrew Williams, Janet Williams, Jennifer

Williams, Kim Woodhouse, David Woods, Nicholas Woolley, Amanda Woolley, Ashton Woolley, Douglas

Cadet Member (13-15yrs)

Adams, Lachlan Ainslie, Paige Aliotti, Bonnie Bell, Ella Bird, Melissa Cameron, Adam Cannon, Anastatia Case, Jack Cattlin, Jake Cherry, Anais Clement, Sophie Clifford, Robert Cochrane, Wade Colman, Lucy Comfort, Stephanie Coombs, Darcy Cooper, Michael Coy, Georgia Curson, Harriet Curtis, Harriette

Dewhurst, Lucy Dunn, Camilla Elson, Julia Evans, Shakira Exton, Daniel Farrar, Madeleine Fish, Georgia Fleming, Jasper Forrest, Hayden Forrester, Kieran Gavin, Elouise Gawn, Max Gearing, Sarah Godfree, Alice Green, Terry Greene, Edward Hamilton, Emily Harding, Tim Harrington, Anna Hartley, Isabella Henderson, Letitia Hill, Phoebe Hill, Shari Hollway, Jake Holmes, Alec Horkings, Jason Howell, Jackson Howell, Morgan Hughes, Harriet Jeffries, Annabelle Jones, Warwick King, Zarli Kirwan, Campbell Lethlean, Hannah Lewis, Shannyn Lipszyc, Kimberley Long, Stephanie Lorkin, Fraser Lyon, Jakk Maclean, Jack McCarthy, Vincent McComb, Sam McInneny-McRae, Kari McMahon, Maddison Mitchell, Zach Morey, Max Niall, Asha Noall, Charlotte OBrien, Tim Palser, Marlee Patterson, Rachel Powell, Sam Rowley, Emily

Royal, Max

Russo, Ellie

Scuds, Taylor

Davenport, Lucy

Dekleuver, Zak

Smart, Phoebe Smith, Mitchell Smith, Natassia Sonneveld, Corie Strauks, Matthew Taylor, Rebecca Turner, Holly Utri, Liam Weadman, Tessa Wesley, Kayla-Jane Williams, Zachary Woodman, Jessica Ymer, Jack **Long Service** Knight, lan Russell, David Reserve Active Brawn, Tamara-Leigh Christian, Francis Marshall, Ben Robinson, Kenneth **Life Member** Barnes, Andrew Cahill, Murray Caraher, Michael Ellis, Dick Ford, Peter Forsyth, John Gibson, Peter Horwood, Brian Horwood, John James, Geoffrey Kidd, Edward McDonald, Clayton McKellar, Garry Morgenthaler, Stephen Murray, Ronald Randall, Gary Roberts, Donald Rydberg, Garry Tierney, Gary Tierney, Graham Treadwell, Alfred Waters, Geoffrey Whillans, Peter Woodhouse, Robert Junior Member (5-13yrs) Abbott, Elizabeth Abrahams, Gabriel Abrahams, Noa Allsopp, Abby Allsopp, Jemma Allsopp, Thomas Anderson, Lily Atkins, Charlie Atkins, Harry

Shean, Sarah

Atkinson, Joseph

Junior Member (5-13yrs) Banks, Jacob Banks, Meg Bannerman, Ruby Barnes, Bridget Barnes, Ingrid Barnum, Harry Barnum, Max Batten, Aidan Beaumont, Gabriella Bede, Harry Beilby, Jack Benetti, Natalia Beresford, Adam Bergin, Julia Bergin, Robbie Bessell, Charlie Bessell, Samuel Bickers, Billee Bickers, Charlee Blackney, William Blackshaw, Lucinda Blackshaw, Phoebe Blair-Holt, Isabelle Blair-Holt, James Bogdan, Hugo Bourke, Baylee Bourke, Niamh Breadmore, Rebecca Breadmore, Timothy Briggs, James Briggs, Lauren Brooks, Kate Brooks, Thomas Brown, Lily Brown, Myles Brown, Rosie Burdon-Smith, Linnea Burke, Andrew Burke, Marcus Burke, Nicholas Burstin, Asher Burstin, Isabella Burstin, Maya Cameron, Isabelle Cameron, James Cannon, Angus Cannon, Victoria Carboon, Hannah Carson, Elisa Carson, Hugo Carson, Isabella Cassell-Ashton, Charli Cassell-Ashton, Georgia Cassell-Ashton, Kate Clancy Thomas, Llewellyn Clark, Emily Clark, William Cock, Charlotte Cock, Darcy Coldham, Anna Colman, Charles

Colman, George

Cook, Asha Cook, Olivia Corden, Patrick Cousins, Darcy Coy, Tom Curtis, Lily Darvall, Electra Dewhurst, Jack Dicks, Harriet Dicks, Phillipa Dixon, Anna Dobie, Brendan Doherty, Ellie Doherty, Joshua Donnellan, Ifeoma Donnellan, Miles Ducos, Gabriel Ducos, Theo Dueringe, Joshua Dueringe, Matthew Edmonds, Campbell Edmonds, Finley Edwards, Louis Edwards, Olive Espenschied, Kye Espenschied, Tahlia Evans, Sophie Farrar, Angus Feller, Annalise Feller, Sophie Figgins, Max Fink. Charlotte Fink, Joshua Forbes, Isabelle Ford, Isabella Ford. Nicholas Fraser-Smith, Duncan Fraser-Smith, Rebecca Freeman, Matthew Freeman, Olivia Fry, Mietta Fry, Stella Gayfer, Ally Gayfer, Charley Gearing, Peter Golvan, Ariel Gray, Alistair Gray, Caleb Gregory, Will Griffiths, Hugh Griffiths, Sarah Gust, Emma Gust, Fraser Harrison, Piper Harrop, Mairead Harrop, Matilda Hartley, Lily Harvey, Courtney Harvey, Madison Hemphill, Thomas

Herbert, Alexandra

Herbert, Conor

Herbert, Will

Hicks, Edward Hicks, James Hicks, Oliver Hopkinson, Savanna Hopkinson, Zachary Horvath, Imogen Hough, Patrick Hourn, Paris Howe, Maddison Howe, Samantha Hudson, Ehren Jaboor, Lachlan Jaboor, Sarah Kantor, Greta Karayan, Sophie Kay, Charley Keeran, Molly Keeran, Peter Keeran, Rosie Keeran, William Kelly, Lilly Kelly, Ruby Keppell, Hudson Keppell, Olivia Kevin, Claudia Kirwan, Douglas Knight, Dylan Laing, Dominique Laity, Jessica Langley, Grace Langley, Jack Laussen, Ella Lethlean, Abby Lewis, Amber Lillycrapp, James Lillycrapp, Sarah Lipszyc, Adam Lipszyc, Romy Lowman, Max Lowman, Nicholas Luke, Albert Luke, Jack Luke. Madeline Machlin, Benjamin Machlin, Julia Mansour, Hillary May, Alexander McDonald, Liam McFarlane, Lewis McFarlane, Oliver McFarlane, Thomas McGenniss, Emily McGenniss, Lachlan McGill, Hayden McGill, Joel McGill, Troy McGowan, Charlie McGowan, Louis McGregor, Sarah McGregor, Stevie

McKenzie, Bailey

McKenzie, Taylor

McKenzie, Hayden

McLellan, Matilda McLellan, Mikey Menzies-King, Charlotte Mezger, Harry Mezger, Max Mills, Cassandra Mitchell, Ebony Mitchell, Joshua Moncrieff, Tessa Morgan, Katelyn Morgan, Rhiannon Morgenthaler, Brittany Morgenthaler, Kye Mourney, Jessica Mourney, Max Mourney, Sam Neal, Dylan Neal, Lily Niall, Ellis Noall, William Nocella, Gabriele Nocella, Lilliana Nott, Andrew Nott. Callum Nott, Fraser Osborn, Freddie Osborn, Harriet OSullivan, Abby OSullivan, Erin Panye, Lucinda Paton, Isobel Paton, James Petrovic, Aleksandar Phillips, Marshall Piotrowski, Jan Pirrie, Nicholas Pitts, Summer Poon, Maddison Poon, Taylor Potter, Jack Potter, Zoe Pressley, Charlotte Prestt, Bradley Ricca, Sophie Richter, Zachary Rippon, Max Riseley, Emily Riseley, Jack Roadnight, Victoria Robinson, Anna Robinson, Caitlin Robinson, Lachlan Robinson, Phoebe Robison, Amelia Robison, Hannah Ronec, Ben Ronec, Brittany Royal-Hebblewhite, Oscar Russell, Jemima Russell, Kaitlin Russell, Mietta

McLellan, Bailey

Scales, Darcy

Junior Member (5-13yrs)

Scales, Tully Scanlon, Maximilian Scanlon, Sebastian Schiller, Lauren Schiller, Madeline Schofield, Joe Schofield, Navryn Searle, Callum Shannon, Matilda Shannon, Ned Sloggett, Jackson Smith, Charlton Smith, Fergus Smith, Harrison Solomon, Charlie Solomon, Grace Starr, Emily Starr, Heidi Starr, Joshua

Stephen, Madeleine Stephen, William Stockdale, Lucia Strauks, Anita Sunderland, James Sweetman, Brooke Sweetman, Elise Tabain, Gabriella Tabain, Sebastian Taylor, Ella Taylor, Heather Taylor, Jai Taylor, Lachlan Taylor, Milly Thiele, Benjamin Thiele, Jonathon Thomas, Bailey Thorpe, Chloe Thorpe, Luka Townshend, Charlotte

Townshend, Lily Tulen, Max Tulloch, Alexandra Tulloch, Freya Turner, Liam Turner, Samuel Turner, Tabatha Utri, Aisling Utri, Ciara Utri, Conor Utri, Fergal Van Leeuwen, Hilary Wale, Cameron Wale, Ellie Walker, Amelia Walker, Jack Walter, Claudia Walter, Ella Welsh, Callum Welsh, Lucy

Welsh, Sophie Wheldale, Scott White, Billy Wickenden, Lily Wickenden, Spencer Wiedemeyer, Ted Wigan, Jessica Wilkie, Emma Wilkins, Evie Wilkins, Georgia Wilkins, Phillipa Williams, Archie Williams, Oscar Wilmott, Darcy Wiseman, James Wiseman, Laetitia Woods, Bodhi Young, Harrison Young, Jasper Young, William





